
 

AGENDA 
MANDAN CITY COMMISSION 

DECEMBER 16, 2014 
ED “BOSH” FROEHLICH MEETING ROOM, 

MANDAN CITY HALL 
5:30 P.M. 

www.cityofmandan.com 
 

 
 

 
A. ROLL CALL:  

1. Roll call of all City Commissioners. 
 
B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS; 

 
D. MINUTES: 

1. Consider approval of the following minutes: 
i. December 2, 2014 – Regular Board Meeting  

 
E. PUBLIC HEARING: 

 
F. BIDS: 

1. Consider awarding bids for the construction of the new Grounds 
Maintenance Building at the Cemetery and consider a 2014 
Cemetery Budget Amendment to construct. 

 
G. CONSENT AGENDA: 

1. Consider approval of monthly bills. 
2. Consider approval of 2015 salary market adjustments. 
3. Consider approval of Professional Services Agreement with 

Stantec for assistance in planning and designing a downtown 
Street Improvement District. 

4. Consider 2014 fire department budget amendment to accept grant 
and purchase breathing air bottles. 

5. Consider approval of annual Maintenance Certification agreement 
with NDDOT.   

6. Consider approval of PE Reimbursement Agreement for Memorial 
Highway Signals project.  

7. Consider approval of NDDOT Transportation Alternatives Program 
(TAP) application on behalf of the city parks and recreation 
department as a sponsoring agency.  

8. Consider for approval games of chance for Miss Rodeo ND 
Organization at the Seven Seas/Baymont Inn from January 3, 2015 
through February 27, 2015. 

 
H. OLD BUSINESS: 

 

 

  

http://www.cityofmandan.com/government/agenda.html


Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

December 16, 2014 
Page 2 of 3 

 
I. NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Report on U.S. Treasury Office of Inspector General Audit of the 
SSBCI Loan Participation Program 

2. Update on current Street Improvement Projects 
3. Update on forthcoming changes to the city’s sidewalk and driveway 

standard specifications, details, and ordinance sections.  
4. Consider recommendation from Mandan Airport Authority for new 

member. 
 
J. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

1. Consider Financing Resolution for Storm Sewer Improvement 
District #32, Water and Sewer Improvement District #61, and Street 
Improvement Districts #161, #163, #174, #180, #187 Definitive 
Improvement Warrants. (Note: Bond sale was approved by the 
Board on December 2, 2014) 

2. Consider Resolution Authorizing Issuance of $6,095,000 Refunding 
Improvement Bonds of 2014, Series B. (Note: Relates to Agenda 
item J.1.) 

3. Second consideration and final passage of Ordinance No. 1188, an 
Ordinance to amend Title 21 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances 
related to Landscaping. 

4. Second consideration and final passage of Ordinance 1195, An 
Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact Chapter 4-09 of the Mandan 
Code of Ordinances Relating to City Employee Pension Plan. 

5. Consider Resolution establishing NSF charge for returned 
payments resulting from public utilities and services supplied, 
provided or furnished by the City of Mandan. 

6. First consideration of Ordinance 1196 to amend and re-enact 
Chapter 12-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to a 
Class WB (Winery/Brewery) liquor license. 

7. Consider Resolution adopting the Morton County Mulit-Hazard 
Mitigation Plan. 

 
K. OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
L. FUTURE MEETING DATES FOR BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS: 

1. January 6, 2015 
2. January 20, 2015 
3. February 3, 2015 
 

M. ADJOURN 
 
 
 

Public Communication  
A scheduled time for public participation has been placed on the agenda at 
Mandan City Commission meetings. The Board desires to hear the viewpoints of 



Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

December 16, 2014 
Page 3 of 3 

 
citizens throughout the City. Individuals wishing to address the Board are 
encouraged to make arrangements with the Board President or the City 
Administrator prior to the meeting. Comments should be made to the Board and 
not to individuals in the audience and be related to City operations and programs. 
The Board will not hear personal complaints against any person connected with 
the City. If a citizen would like to add a topic to the agenda, arrangements must 
be made in advance with the City Administrator or Board President. The Board 
reserves the right to eliminate or restrict the time allowed for public participation. 
The Board requests that comments are limited to three (3) minutes or less. 
Groups of individuals addressing a common concern are asked to designate a 
spokesperson. 
 
Departmental planning meeting will be held the Monday prior to the Commission meeting, all 
Commissioners are invited, noon, former Morton County Library Room. Please notify the city 
administrator by 8:30 a.m. that Monday if you plan on attending. If more than two commissioners 
plan on attending, proper public notice must be given. 

 



(Page intentionally left blank) 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 2, 2014 

Page 1 of 4 

 The Mandan City Commission met in regular session at 5:30 p.m. on December 2, 

2014 in the Ed “Bosh” Froehlich Room at City Hall, Mandan, North Dakota. 

Commissioners present were Van Beek, Tibke, Rohr, Laber, and Braun. Department 

Heads present were Finance Director Welch, Police Chief Bullinger, City Attorney 

Brown, City Administrator Neubauer, Director of Public Works Wright, Fire Chief 

Nardello, Planning & Engineering Director Froseth, Planner Decker, Assessor Shaw, and 

Building Official Lalim.  Absent: Business Development & Communications Director 

Huber. 

 

B.         APPROVAL OF AGENDA:   Commissioner Laber motioned to approve the 

Agenda as presented.  Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  The motion received 

unanimous approval of the members present. The motion passed.   

 

C.         PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS:  Mayor Van Beek invited anyone to come 

forward to address items on the Agenda excluding public hearings.  A second 

announcement was made to come forward to speak for or against items on the Agenda.  

Hearing none, this portion of the Public Communications forum was closed.   

 

D. MINUTES: 

1.        Consider approval of the following minutes from the Board of City Commission 

regular meeting held November 18, 2014.  Commissioner Braun moved to approve the 

minutes as presented. Commissioner Laber seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  

Commissioner Laber: Yes; Commissioner Braun: Yes; Commissioner Rohr:  Yes; 

Commissioner Tibke:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

E.         PUBLIC HEARING: 

1.         Conduct a public hearing to consider adoption of Ordinance 1188, an Ordinance 

to amend Title 21 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances related to Landscaping.  Robert 

Decker, Principal Planner stated that current requirements for landscaping in the Code of 

Ordinances are limited to certain zones or specific uses.  The Mandan Community 

Beautification Committee has worked on this matter for several months and as a result 

the Committee recommends that there be a universal requirement for landscaping on all 

property within the City of Mandan.  The Planning and Zoning Commission and the 

Mandan Architectural Review Commission have reviewed their recommendation and 

they concur with the adoption of the Ordinance to amend Title 21 as presented.  The 

requirements will take effect going forward and will not be retroactive.  This Ordinance 

will give the Municipal Judge more leeway in what penalties can be imposed based on 

state law.  This provides a monetary incentive to make arrangements quickly.    

 

Mayor Van Beek stated this is a public hearing and invited anyone to come forward to 

speak for or against the adoption of Ordinance 1188, an Ordinance to amend Title 21 of  

the Mandan Code of Ordinances related to Landscaping.  A second announcement was 

made to come forward.  Hearing none, this portion of the public hearing was closed.  

 

F.         BIDS: 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 2, 2014 

Page 2 of 4 

G.        CONSENT AGENDA 

1.         Consider for approval replat of Lot 1, Block 1, Midway 12
th

 Addition 

2.         Consider approval of games of chance for 957 MWR Committee at the Seven Seas 

Inn on Dec. 6, 2014. 

3.         Consider the request for approval of Ambulance Service Agreement. 

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the Consent Agenda items 1, 2 and 3 as 

presented.   Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner 

Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  

Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

H.        OLD BUSINESS: 

1.         Consider approval of negotiation with Stantec to enter into a contract for design 

engineering and pre-bid services for downtown street improvement district.   

Planning & Engineering Director Froseth stated that the Engineering Department has 

identified an area in downtown Mandan to conduct a street improvement project.  The 

boundaries are 4
th

 Avenue NE on the west and Mandan Avenue on the east.  Second and 

Third Streets would be part of the project as well as streets in between this area.  The 

water main project is also being considered.  In October there was a request for proposals 

for the design engineering and pre-bid services.  Eight (8) proposals were submitted by 

November 18, 2014.  The City staff recommends selecting Stantec to perform design 

engineering and pre-bid services for this project.  The request before the Board tonight is 

a request to negotiate a contract with Stantec.  If approved, a project plan will be brought 

to the next City Commission meeting.   

 

Commissioner Laber moved to authorize the Engineering Department to move forward 

with negotiating terms of an agreement with Stantec for design engineering and pre-bid 

services for downtown street improvement district project. Commissioner Braun 

seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: 

Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  

Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

I.          NEW BUSINESS: 

1.         Presentation by Mike Manstrom, Dougherty & Company LLC, regarding the sale 

of $6,095,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2014, Series B. (See Resolutions #3). 

Mike Manstrom, Dougherty & Company LLC presented a request for the authorization of 

the sale of $6,095,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2014, Series B.  He stated three  

competitive bids were received.  The bid was awarded to Hutchinson, Shockey, Erley & 

Co, a 15-year issue with a 2.788% interest rate.   A copy of the Moody Report was 

provided by Mr. Manstrom indicating the rating given is an A-1, which speaks highly of 

the City of Mandan.  He stated that the Resolution has been prepared and if approved, the 

rates will be locked in.   

 

2.         Consider authorization of ad for bid for Mandan Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Optimization project.  Planning & Engineering Director Froseth presented a request to 

advertise for the bid process for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Optimization Project.   



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 2, 2014 

Page 3 of 4 

The project will include rehabilitation of the existing pretreatment building including new 

electrical, process, mechanical and odor control equipment, along with modification to 

the blower building and basically an overall optimization of the entire plant.  The project 

is scheduled to begin in February 2015 with the completion expected in February 2016.   

A loan application for this project will be presented.  Commissioner Rohr commented 

that these items are matters that need to be addressed on a regular basis and planned out 

over several years.  

 

Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the advertisement of Mandan Wastewater 

Treatment Facility interim optimization improvements.  Commissioner Laber seconded 

the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; 

Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  

The motion passed. 

 

J.          RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

1.         First consideration of Ordinance No. 1188, an Ordinance to amend Title 21 of the 

Mandan Code of Ordinances related to Landscaping.  Commissioner Tibke moved to 

approve the First consideration of Ordinance No. 1188, an Ordinance to amend Title 21 

of the Mandan Code of Ordinances related to Landscaping.  Commissioner Laber 

seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: 

Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  

Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

2.          Consider Resolution authorizing filing of application with the North Dakota 

Department of Health for a Loan under the Clean Water Act. Planning & Engineering 

Director Froseth stated this matter is a request for the release of funds for the Wastewater 

Treatment Plant, as the project progresses.  Commissioner Rohr moved to approve the 

Resolution authorizing filing of application with the North Dakota Department of Health 

for a Loan under the Clean Water Act. Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll 

call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  

Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

3.          Consider Resolution Awarding Sale of Warrants and Bonds for $6,095,000 

Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2014, Series B. Commissioner Braun moved to approve 

the Resolution Awarding Sale of Warrants and Bonds for $6,095,000 Refunding 

Improvement Bonds of 2014, Series B. Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll 

call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  

Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

4.          Introduction and first consideration of Ordinance 1195, An Ordinance to Amend 

and Re-enact Chapter 4-09 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances Relating to City 

Employee Pension Plan.  City Administrator Neubauer stated that there were items in the 

2015 Budget that were previously approved.  With regard to the Employee Pension Plan, 

employees will be required to participate in the defined contribution plan unless they 

elect not to participate.  He pointed out that the Plan will now have a provision that sworn 

police officers and firefighters, should they contribute 4% or greater into the Plan, the 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of December 2, 2014 

Page 4 of 4 

City will make a contribution of 10%.  If the officer or firefighter contributes less than 

4% but equal or greater than 2% the City will contribute 8%.   The budget process 

concluded that if the employee contributes an additional 2% the City will put in an 

additional 2%.  Also addressed in the Plan is that a participant attains normal retirement 

age under the Plan when the participant attains age 65.  The Plan designates attainment of 

age 55 for sworn police officers and career firefighters.  The plan will become effective 

January 1, 2015, contingent upon the passing of the first and second reading of the 

ordinance.  Commissioner Rohr commented that the Plan addresses the shared 

responsibility of both the employer (City of Mandan) and the employee to contribute to 

retirement funds.   

 

Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the Introduction and first consideration of 

Ordinance 1195, An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact Chapter 4-09 of the Mandan 

Code of Ordinances Relating to City Employee Pension Plan.  Commissioner Braun 

seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: 

Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  

Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

K.         OTHER BUSINESS   

 

There being no further actions to come before the Board of City Commissioners, 

Commissioner Laber moved to adjourn the meeting at 5:55 p.m. Commissioner Rohr 

seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous approval of the members present. 

The motion passed. 

 

   

James Neubauer, 

City Administrator 

 

 Arlyn Van Beek,  

President, Board of City 

Commissioners 
 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE: 

Consider to award the construction of the new Grounds Maintenance Building to the low bidders.  

Since the bids came in above our budget, we are asking to consider a Budget Amendment to 

cover those costs above our existing 2014 Budget. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  

The 2014 Cemetery Budget included the construction of the future Grounds Maintenance 

Building on the Mandan Cemetery grounds.  We planned on bringing this to the Commission in 

May, but with the preliminary estimates and the building style, we decided to hold off do some 

revisions to the plans and advertise for bids in October with hopes to generate better interest 

from bidders.   

 

Bids were opened on November 13 with a lot of interest from bidders. 

   

 3 Single Prime bids – which includes General, Electrical and Mechanical.  

 7 General Contractor bids – building construction only, no Electrical or Mechanical. 

 7 Electrical Contractor bids – Electrical only. 

 8 Mechanical Contractor bids – Mechanical only. 

 

The bids consisted of a base bid with 4 alternate bid items for consideration.  The Single Prime 

bids were higher than using individual contractors for each phase of construction. See attached 

Bid Tab.  

 Low General Contractor bidder was Dakota West Contracting, Bismarck, ND at 

$618,950, including all alternatives.   

 Low Electrical Contractor bidder was Denny’s Electric, Dickinson, ND at $61,530.   

 Low Mechanical Contractor bidder was Central Mechanical, Inc., Mandan, ND at 

$101,800. 

 

MEETING DATE: December 16, 2014 

PREPARATION DATE: December 11, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Public Works Dept. 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jeff Wright, Public Works Director 

PRESENTER: Jeff Wright, Public Works Director 

SUBJECT: Consider awarding bids for the construction of the 

new Grounds Maintenance Building at the 

Cemetery and consider a 2014 Cemetery Budget 

Amendment to construct. 

 

  

Bids #1 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Consider awarding bids for the construction of the new Grounds Maintenance 

Building at the Cemetery and approve the 2014 Budget Amendment. 

Page 2 of 7 

 
Total construction cost bid is $782,280 including all 4 alternate bid items.  Additional costs for 

Engineering for Site Plan and Storm Water Plan, Architect fees for design and construction, 

construction testing, water and sewer materials, approach materials is estimated at $107,720, for 

a total project cost of $890,000.  The 2014 Budget for the building is $600,000, we would ask 

that a Budget Amendment for $290,000 from the General Fund be considered to get this much 

needed office and storage building constructed to help provide office/storage relief from the 

current Public Works Facilities and current Cemetery facility and get more equipment inside, out 

of the elements.  

 

The new building would be the future home of the Grounds Maintenance Department which will 

be the combination of existing departments in a centralized area able to utilize multiple resources 

to maintain the Cemetery grounds, maintain City owned property, and assist the Arborist in the 

fight against Dutch Elm Disease, all with more efficiency, saving time and money.  These 

departments include the Cemetery, Forestry and Weed Control.   

 

Project time line as follows:  

1. City Commission consideration December 16, 2014 

2. Ground breaking in April 2015 

3. Completion September 1, 2015 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Site plan, floor plan, elevation plan, bid tab 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

We have a 2014 budget amount of $600,000 for the building. The proposed Budget Amendment 

of $290,000 would be split $245,000 General Fund and $45,000 Sales Tax as suggested by 

Finance Director Greg Welch.  Total project costs will be split $445,000 General Fund and 

$445,000 Sales Tax. 

 

LEGAL REVIEW: 

Commission Agenda documents have been reviewed by Attorney Brown. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

To award the construction of the Grounds Maintenance Building at the Cemetery to low General 

Contractor bidder Dakota West Contracting, Bismarck, ND at $618,950, low Electrical 

Contractor bidder Denny’s Electric, Dickinson, ND at $61,530, low Mechanical Contractor 

bidder Central Mechanical, Inc., Mandan, ND at $101,800 and a budget amendment to the 2014 

Cemetery Budget for $290,000. 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION: 

Move to award the construction of the Grounds Maintenance Building at the Cemetery to low 

General Contractor bidder Dakota West Contracting, Bismarck, ND at $618,950, low Electrical 

Contractor bidder Denny’s Electric, Dickinson, ND at $61,530, low Mechanical Contractor 

bidder Central Mechanical, Inc., Mandan, ND at $101,800 and approve the budget amendment to 

the 2014 Cemetery Budget for $290,000. 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Consider awarding bids for the construction of the new Grounds Maintenance 

Building at the Cemetery and approve the 2014 Budget Amendment. 

Page 3 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Consider awarding bids for the construction of the new Grounds Maintenance 

Building at the Cemetery and approve the 2014 Budget Amendment. 

Page 4 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Consider awarding bids for the construction of the new Grounds Maintenance 

Building at the Cemetery and approve the 2014 Budget Amendment. 

Page 5 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Consider awarding bids for the construction of the new Grounds Maintenance 

Building at the Cemetery and approve the 2014 Budget Amendment. 

Page 6 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Consider awarding bids for the construction of the new Grounds Maintenance 

Building at the Cemetery and approve the 2014 Budget Amendment. 

Page 7 of 7 

 

 
 

 



Consent #2

Board of City Commissioners

Agenda Documentation

"WHE:RE: THE WE:ST BEGINS"

MEETING DATE:
PREPARATION DATE:
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT:
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR:
PRESENTER:
SUBJECT:

December 16,2014
December 10,2014
Administration
Jim Neubauer, City Administrator
Jim Neubauer, City Administrator
2015 Salary Market Adjustments

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:
To consider approval of the 2015 salary market adjustments above the City's
annual Budget guideline for various Equipment Operator and Mechanic positions.

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:
On June 18, 2013, the Board of City Commissioners approved a new Salary Plan by
adjusting the minimum and maximum position salary ranges to 95% of the comparable
position salary ranges in the City of Bismarck. Annual market adjustments based on the
Plan were capped at 5% per year or a one Grade increase. Future market adjustments for
the City are determined by the results of the City of Bismarck's annual Salary Study, This
practice allows the City's Salary Plan to stay current with the market without making
adjustments every 7 to 10 years.

On January 1,2014, the City deferred salary market adjustments for several positions due
to the annual cap of 5% per year or a one Grade increase. As a result, the Board of City
Commissioners, on March 18,2014, approved the deferred salary market adjustments for
these positions effective for the first pay period after April 1,2014.

In September, the City received the results of the City of Bismarck's annual Salary Study.
Consequently, for the City of Mandan's comparative positions, the Salary Study indicated
a two Grade increase for various Equipment Operator and Mechanic positions. The higher
salary increase for these positions may largely be due to the competitive labor market and
demand for these job skills in the oil industry.

ATTACHMENTS:
None



Board of City Commissioners
Agenda Documentation
Meeting Date: December 16,2014
Subject: Salary Market Adjustments
Page 2 of2

FISCAL IMPACT:
The salary market adjustments included in the 2015 Budget is adequate to cover the two
Grade increase for the various Equipment Operator and Mechanic positions.

STAFF IMPACT:
None

LEGAL REVIEW:
Submitted to Malcolm Brown, City Attorney.

RECOMMENDATION:
To approve the 2015 salary market adjustments above the City's annual Budget guideline
for various Equipment Operator and Mechanic positions.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
Move to approve the 2015 salary market adjustments above the City's annual Budget
guideline for various Equipment Operator and Mechanic positions.



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider entering into an agreement with Stantec for the design 

and pre-bid services of a Street Improvement District in Downtown Mandan.  

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The engineering department has identified an area in 

downtown Mandan to conduct a street improvement district project. The boundaries of this 

project are generally defined at this point as the areas between 4
th
 Avenue NE on the west, and 

Mandan Avenue on the east, and north of Main Street to about 4
th
 Street (bottom of hill). This 

area was chosen for a couple main reasons; 1) The majority of the area’s streets are categorized 

as unsatisfactory on the 2012 pavement condition index assessment study. 2) The Public Works 

department has targeted this area for its annual watermain replacements, meaning that they will 

already need to remove a fair amount of asphalt within this area in order to accomplish. 

 

In October, the city advertised for solicitation of Requests for Proposals for design engineering 

and pre-bid services. Eight (8) proposals were submitted to the city by November 14
th
. Upon 

receiving, city staff reviewed and then scored the proposals. Upon that review and scoring, city 

staff is recommended selecting Stantec to perform design engineering and pre-bid services for 

this project. Stantec and city staff have been in correspondence since the December 2
nd

 

commission meeting to put forth an agreement outlining the services provided and the city’s cost 

for those services.  

 

Future expected schedule of project milestones is as follows: 

 January 20
th
, 2015 – Approve assessment district and resolution of necessity followed by 

publishing and protest period 

 March 3
rd

 – Public hearing to determine sufficiency of protests 

 April 7
th
 – Approval of plans and specs and invitation to bid 

 April 29
th
 - Bid opening 

 May 5
th
 - Approval of low bid 

 Start construction in 2015 

 

MEETING DATE: December 16, 2014 

PREPARATION DATE: December 11, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Contract with Stantec for Design and Pre-Bid 

Engineering Services of 2015 Downtown Street 

Improvement District Project 

 

  

Consent No. 3 

  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Contract with Stantec for Design and Pre-Bid Engineering Services of 2015 

Downtown Street Improvement District Project 

Page 2 of 12 

 
ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Map of General Area of Improvements 

2. Professional Services Agreement 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:   The finance department has set aside $75,000 in the city sales tax fund 

for planning of downtown SID projects given the nature of higher volumes of through traffic in 

downtown areas. The construction of the streets, however, would be paid for by special 

assessment method and assessed to benefiting properties.    

 

STAFF IMPACT:   Will work with Stantec in all aspects of project. 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for 

his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Professional Services Agreement with Stantec. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve Professional Services Agreement with Stantec. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Contract with Stantec for Design and Pre-Bid Engineering Services of 2015 

Downtown Street Improvement District Project 

Page 3 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Contract with Stantec for Design and Pre-Bid Engineering Services of 2015 

Downtown Street Improvement District Project 

Page 4 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Contract with Stantec for Design and Pre-Bid Engineering Services of 2015 

Downtown Street Improvement District Project 

Page 5 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Contract with Stantec for Design and Pre-Bid Engineering Services of 2015 

Downtown Street Improvement District Project 

Page 6 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Contract with Stantec for Design and Pre-Bid Engineering Services of 2015 

Downtown Street Improvement District Project 

Page 7 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Contract with Stantec for Design and Pre-Bid Engineering Services of 2015 

Downtown Street Improvement District Project 

Page 8 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Contract with Stantec for Design and Pre-Bid Engineering Services of 2015 

Downtown Street Improvement District Project 

Page 9 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Contract with Stantec for Design and Pre-Bid Engineering Services of 2015 

Downtown Street Improvement District Project 

Page 10 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Contract with Stantec for Design and Pre-Bid Engineering Services of 2015 

Downtown Street Improvement District Project 

Page 11 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Contract with Stantec for Design and Pre-Bid Engineering Services of 2015 

Downtown Street Improvement District Project 

Page 12 of 12 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  The Mandan Fire Department has received 

notification of approval for a Homeland Security Grant award from the North 

Dakota Department of Emergency Services. We would like to amend the 2014 fire 

department equipment reserve budget to include the Homeland Security Grant. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Our department applied to the North Dakota 

Department of Emergency Services for a 0% matching grant to purchase breathing air 

bottles. We received notification that our grant request was approved for $14,250.00 and 

now require authorization to accept the funding and allow for the purchase of 17 air 

bottles. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   Grant notification. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Amend the 2014 fire equipment reserve budget to include $14,250 

grant revenue and $14,250 air breathing air bottle expenditure.  

 

STAFF IMPACT:   Purchase of new breathing air bottles is necessary to replace 

existing bottles thjat are reaching the end of service dates. 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   None 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend that we accept the North Dakota Department of 

Emergency Services Homeland Security Grant and authorize the purchase of new 

breathing air bottles. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  Motion to amend the fire department 2014 budget to include 

$14,250 for the purchase of 17 breathing air bottles and $14,250 revenue from North 

Dakota Department of Emergency Services Homeland Security Grant. 

 

 

MEETING DATE: December 16, 2014 

PREPARATION DATE: November 26, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Fire 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Steve Nardello, Fire Chief 

PRESENTER: Steve Nardello, Fire Chief 

SUBJECT: 2014 Budget Amendment 

 

  

Consent No. 4  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014  

Subject: 2014 Budget Amendment 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To assure the NDDOT that the city is doing our part in 
maintaining roads in which we received federal aid for in constructing.  

 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  For each road project the city does using federal 
aid as administered through the NDDOT, the city is required to enter in to a Cost 
Participation, Construction, and Maintenance (CPM) Agreement. Part of the agreement is 
to agree to maintain the road as outlined in Part III of the sample agreement attached. The 
annual Maintenance Certification form, also attached, is to verify that the city is indeed 
doing their part in maintaining these roads.  
   
ATTACHMENTS:   

1) Maintenance Certification Agreement 
2) Sample CPM 

  
FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal     
 
STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney 
for his review. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Recommend approval of annual Maintenance Certification 
Agreement.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve of annual Maintenance Certification 
Agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEETING DATE: December 16, 2014 
PREPARATION DATE: December 12, 2014 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Planning and Engineering 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 
PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 
SUBJECT: NDDOT Annual Maintenance Certification 

 Consent No. 5  



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: December 16, 2014  
Subject: NDDOT Annual Maintenance Certification 
Page 2 of 11 
 

 

 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: December 16, 2014  
Subject: NDDOT Annual Maintenance Certification 
Page 3 of 11 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: December 16, 2014  
Subject: NDDOT Annual Maintenance Certification 
Page 4 of 11 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: December 16, 2014  
Subject: NDDOT Annual Maintenance Certification 
Page 5 of 11 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: December 16, 2014  
Subject: NDDOT Annual Maintenance Certification 
Page 6 of 11 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: December 16, 2014  
Subject: NDDOT Annual Maintenance Certification 
Page 7 of 11 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: December 16, 2014  
Subject: NDDOT Annual Maintenance Certification 
Page 8 of 11 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: December 16, 2014  
Subject: NDDOT Annual Maintenance Certification 
Page 9 of 11 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: December 16, 2014  
Subject: NDDOT Annual Maintenance Certification 
Page 10 of 11 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: December 16, 2014  
Subject: NDDOT Annual Maintenance Certification 
Page 11 of 11 
 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To agree to fully reimburse the NDDOT for cost associated with the 

design of traffic signals at 40
th
 and 46

th
 Avenue along Memorial Highway if the city should 

decide not to go forward with project.    

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  City staff and NDDOT staff are in agreement with the 

need to install traffic signals at 40
th
 and Memorial Highway and to upgrade the signals at 46

th
 and 

Memorial Highway. A consultant has been brought on board and design has started for this 

project. Given Memorial Highway’s classification, the city’s share for both design and 

construction of this project is about 10%. This agreement assures the NDDOT that if the city 

should decide not to agree to move forward with the traffic signals, that the NDDOT would be 

fully reimbursed for design costs.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement Agreement 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Minimal    

 

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for 

his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of Preliminary Engineering 

Reimbursement Agreement. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve of Preliminary Engineering Reimbursement 

Agreement. 

 

 

 

MEETING DATE: December 16, 2014 

PREPARATION DATE: December 11, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Memorial Highway Signals Preliminary 

Engineering (PE) Reimbursement Agreement 

 

  

Consent No. 6 

  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Memorial Highway Signals Preliminary Engineering (PE) Reimbursement 

Agreement 

Page 2 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Memorial Highway Signals Preliminary Engineering (PE) Reimbursement 

Agreement 

Page 3 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Memorial Highway Signals Preliminary Engineering (PE) Reimbursement 

Agreement 

Page 4 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Memorial Highway Signals Preliminary Engineering (PE) Reimbursement 

Agreement 

Page 5 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Memorial Highway Signals Preliminary Engineering (PE) Reimbursement 

Agreement 

Page 6 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Memorial Highway Signals Preliminary Engineering (PE) Reimbursement 

Agreement 

Page 7 of 7 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  The Mandan Parks and Recreation District has identified a project 

which fits the criteria for a NDDOT Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) grant. The parks 

and recreation district is not able to submit directly to the NDDOT for such grants, the DOT 

requires them to submit through the city as their sponsoring agent.   

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The project applied for is to improve the Millennium Trail 

from the trolley depot off of 3
rd

 Street to the west, then to the south, to 19
th
 Street SE. The 

application is attached for more detail and cost information on this project. The local share of the 

project would be recovered by the city by a special assessment specifically to the park district as 

agreed upon in the attached letter provided by the Mandan Park District. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. TAP Application 

2. Letter from MPD  
  

FISCAL IMPACT:   Minimal    

 

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for 

his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of sponsoring the Mandan Park District’s 

TAP Application.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve of sponsoring the Mandan Park District’s TAP 

Application. 

 

 

 

 

MEETING DATE: December 16, 2014 

PREPARATION DATE: December 11, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Sponsor Parks and Recreation TAP Application 

 

  

Consent No. 7 

  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Sponsor Parks and Recreation TAP Application 

Page 2 of 8 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Sponsor Parks and Recreation TAP Application 

Page 3 of 8 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Sponsor Parks and Recreation TAP Application 

Page 4 of 8 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Sponsor Parks and Recreation TAP Application 

Page 5 of 8 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Sponsor Parks and Recreation TAP Application 

Page 6 of 8 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Sponsor Parks and Recreation TAP Application 

Page 7 of 8 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Sponsor Parks and Recreation TAP Application 

Page 8 of 8 

 

 



IConsent No.8 ILOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT
NORTH DAKOTA OFFICE OF ATIORNEY GENERAL
LICENSING SECTION
SFN 17926(1012012)'~:··0f~~~!jjI~£~~~··/

Type: ffi1 Locar Permit ~D Charily Local Permit
IPermitNumber

2014·65
Name of Organization Date(s) Authorized (Readinstruction 2)

Miss Rodeo Nd Organization
Contact Person Business PhoneNumber 1/3/2015 to 2/27/2015

Leslie Stevens (701) 578·4953 Beginning Ending
MailingAddress City IState IZip Code

Po Box 381 Bismarck ND 58502-0000
Site Name SiteAddress

Seven Seas I Baymont Inn 1823 Old Red Trail
City State IZIP Code County

Mandan NO 58554·00( Morton
Check IheGame(s)Authorized: • Poker, Twenty-one, and Paddlewheels maybe Conductedonly by a CharityLocal Permi!.

o Bingo [R} Raffle o CalendarRaffie o Sports Pool o Poker' o Twenty-one o Paddlewheels"

--
Restriction:

Requirement: For a "CharityLocalPermit:' the organization mustfile a "Report on a CharityLocal Permit"with the cilyor county auditor.am!Officeof
Attorney Generalwithin 30 days of the event.

Date

s~~rs:7tZ:ditOr Printed Name of City or CountyAuditor IAuditorTelephone Number

12/11/2014 Jay Gruebele (701) 667-3250

Please see theinstrUC!i~n ~ackSide ofthis form dh how to complete the Permi!.
For a raffie or calendar ffie, r d "Information Required to be Preprinted on a Standard RaffieTicket"below.

cut along this line
--------------------_-....._-------------------------------_~_--- ......

INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE PREPRINTED ON A STANDARD RAFFLE TICKET:

1. Name of organization;
2. Ticket number;
3. Price of the ticket, Including any discounted price;
4. Prize, description of an optional prize selectable by a winning player, or option to convert a merchandise prize to a cash prize

that is limited to the lesser of the value of the merchandise prize or four thousand dollars. However, if there is insufficient
space on a ticket to list each minor prize that has a retail price not exceeding twenty dollars, an organization may state the
total number of minor prizes and their total retail price;

5. For a licensed organization, print "office of attorney general" and license number. For an organization that has a permit, print
the authorizing city or county and permit number;

6. A statement that a person is or is not required to be present at a drawing to win;
7. Date and time of the drawing or drawings and, if the winning player is to be announced later, date and lime of that

announcement. For a calendar raffle, if the drawings are on a same day of the week or month, print the day and time of the
drawing;

8. Location and street address of the draWing;
9. If a merchandise prize requires a title transfer involving the department of transportation, a statement that a winning player is

or is not liable for sales or use tax;
10. If a purchase of a ticket Or winning prize is restricted to a person of minimum age, a statement that a person must be at least

'_'_" years of age to buy a ticket, or win a prize;
11. A statement that a purchase of the ticket is not a charitable donation;
12. If a secondary prize is an unguaranteed cash or merchandise prize, a statement that the prize is not guaranteed to be won

and odds of winning the prize based on numbers of chances; and
13. If a prize is live beef or dairy cattle, horse, bison, sheep or pig, a statement that lhe winning player may convert the prize to a

cash prize that is limited to the lesser of the market value of Ihe animal or four thousand dollars.



APPLICATION FOR A LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT
OFFICE OF ATIORNEY GENERAL
SFN 9338 (9-2009)

Application for: I:8f Local Permit •0 Charity Local Permit (one event per year)

Name, of Non-Pf,t Organizalion

Q~'-(l'
Dale(s) of Activity

6~1-2J)j'-~-~'~iSS 1"\6dLQ,~ ND. I --- -3 .- 20 lS to
Person Responsible for the Gaming Operation and the Disbursement of Net Income Title (:2

BU:701~hS~?~,~~rLj 9)3LES\\z S\-~V.:;:.v\S 't ,(c.:,s, _
Business Address "j) i) Cj~ State Zip Code

l ,0. lOdX 3%, ' LJ-{S YVl,C\.ve.l N1J S'6.2) 2.
Mailing Address (if different)

r2- c.Q CitY. 0 State Zip Code ~f
~ aSl1-S l.,,/cS'n'J M.Q V--.{(. U\"1 ND S<iSSS l

t-jame ,of Site w'here G7i~will be Condu9(~d Site Address

(')'1& Ro__(Q ~1VCl\'\'S<zvQ'v) Y:(\s, r '1....fYY\6Yl -LLv\ y~ 1~L?
Cily

(\)\.0.V\ &0 Y'j Sti\j () IZip CO~~S51), County fvl (J'yt"()")_)

Check the Game(s) to be Conducted: • Poker. Twenty-ore. and Paddlewheels may be Conducted only by a Charity Local Permit.

o Bingo '[gJ Raffie DCalendar Raffle o Sports Pool o Poker' D Twenty-one' o Paddlewheels'

DESCRIPTION AND RETAIL VALUE OF PRIZES TO BE AWARDED

Game Type Description of Prize
Retail Value of

Prize

(Umit $12,000 per year)

Total: $

2.'60

Sou

Soo

Retail Value of
Pri,.",

t::. 200

Description of PrizeGame Type

o .~ M,s~ 'R()&Q..QJ t-J D 2.0 JS·
-vv,-Qv>--< C\.. elj..~ ~V\ '\- ;0':~, 20 JS

Does the organization presently have a stale gaming license? [j}MO 0 Yes - If 'Yes," the orqantaauon is not eligible for a locat permit or charity local
permit and should call the Office of Attorney General at 1-800-326-9240_

Has the organization received a charity local permit from this or another city or county for the fiScal year JUly 1 through June 30? ~o 0 Yes- If "Yes,"
the organization does not qualify tor a local permit orcharily local permit.

Has the organizalion received a local permit from this or another city or county for Ihe fiscal year July 1 through June 3D? ~o 0 Yes - If "Yes,"
indicate the total value of all prizes preViously awarded: $ , This emoom t« part of/he tolal prize limit of $12,000 peryear,

Title

~e),
Business Phone Number

7D)' 576- 'i9f/?



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To share an audit report with the City Commission from the 

Office of Inspector General (OIG) of the Department of Treasury for the State Small 

Business Credit Initiative and the Mandan, N.D., consortium’s use of federal funds.  

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The City of Mandan serves as the lead 

municipality for a consortium of 38 municipalities operating a loan participation program 

known as the N.D. Opportunity Fund. The consortium received $9.7 million in funding 

for the revolving loan program for small businesses from the U.S. Department of 

Treasury. The consortium contracts with the Lewis and Clark Regional Development 

Council for program administration.  

 

The OIG conducted an audit this spring of the program from time of approval in 

September 2012 through March 31, 2014. The audit found proper use of funds for loans 

and administration. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   Audit report attached. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   None 

 

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   Not applicable 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   No action is required at this point. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  No action is required at this point. 

 

MEETING DATE: December 16, 2014 

PREPARATION DATE: December 11, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development & Communications 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 

PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 

SUBJECT: SSBCI Audit 

 

  

New Business No. 1  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audit Report 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Report Number:  OIG-SBLF-14-013 

STATE SMALL BUSINESS CREDIT INITIATIVE: 
North Dakota Mandan Consortium’s Use of Federal Funds 
for its Loan Participation Program 

 

August 29, 2014 

 
 

Office of 
Inspector General 
 
Department of the Treasury 

  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

  



 
 

 
North Dakota Mandan Consortium’s Use of Federal Funds for its Loan Participation Program Page i 
(OIG-SBLF-14-013) 

Contents 
 
Results in Brief .............................................................................................. 2 

Background ................................................................................................... 3 

Mandan Consortium’s Participation in SSBCI .................................................. 4 

Mandan Consortium’s Loan Participation Program ........................................... 5 

The Mandan Consortium Used Funds Appropriately, but Financed Loans that May 
Cause Duplicate Reporting of Benefits from an SBA Loan Program ....................... 5 

Administrative Costs Charged to SSBCI and Reviewed by OIG Were Reasonable, 
Allowable, and Allocable ................................................................................. 7 

Management Comments and OIG Response ...................................................... 7 

Appendix 1:  Objectives, Scope and Methodology.............................................. 8 

Appendix 2:  Management Response ................................................................ 9 

Appendix 3:  Major Contributors .................................................................... 11 

Appendix 4:  Distribution List ........................................................................ 12 

 

Abbreviations 
 
The Act The Small Business Jobs Act of 2010 
CDC Certified Development Company 
LPP Loan Participation Program 
Mandan North Dakota Mandan Consortium 
National Standards SSBCI National Standards for Compliance and Oversight 
OIG Office of Inspector General 
OMB Office of Management and Budget 
SBA Small Business Administration 
SSBCI State Small Business Credit Initiative 
Treasury Department of the Treasury 



 

OIG Audit 
Report 

The Department of the Treasury 
Office of Inspector General 
 

 
North Dakota Mandan Consortium’s Use of Federal Funds for its Loan Participation Program Page 1 
(OIG-SBLF-14-013) 

 
August 29, 2014 
 
 
Ms. Jessica Milano 
Deputy Assistant Secretary for Small Business, Community 

Development, and Housing 
 
This report presents the results of our audit of the state of North 
Dakota Mandan Consortium’s (Mandan) use of funds awarded under 
the State Small Business Credit Initiative (SSBCI), which was 
established by the Small Business Jobs Act of 2010 (the Act).  The 
Department of the Treasury (Treasury) awarded Mandan 
approximately $9.7 million1 in SSBCI funds in June 2012, and as of 
March 31, 2014, Mandan had received all of the awarded funds.  As 
of March 31, 2014, Mandan had obligated or spent approximately 
$8.9 million2 of the funds disbursed, all in Mandan’s Loan Participation 
Program (LPP).  The State also incurred $194,101 in administrative 
costs, which brings total funds used to $9.1 million.3 
 
The Act requires Treasury’s Office of Inspector General (OIG) to 
conduct audits of the use of funds made available under SSBCI and 
identify any instances of reckless or intentional misuse.  Treasury has 
defined reckless misuse as a use of allocated funds that the 
participating state or administering entity should have known was 
unauthorized or prohibited, and which is a highly unreasonable 
departure from or a willful disregard of the standards of ordinary care.  
Intentional misuse is defined as a use of allocated funds that the 
participating state or its administering entity knew was unauthorized 
or prohibited. 

                                                 
1 Rounded down from $9,710,768. 
2 Rounded down from $8,943,872. 
3 Rounded down from $9,137,974. 



 
 

 
North Dakota Mandan Consortium’s Use of Federal Funds for its Loan Participation Program Page 2 
(OIG-SBLF-14-013) 

 
Our audit objective was to test participant compliance with program 
requirements and prohibitions to identify any reckless or intentional 
misuse of funds.  To accomplish our objective, we reviewed a 
judgmental sample of 15 loans totaling approximately $8.6 million4 in 
SSBCI funds, which were made under the approved Mandan program 
from the signing of the Allocation Agreement on August 31, 2012, to 
March 31, 2014.  Of the 15 loans reviewed, all were from the LPP, as 
Mandan allocated all of its SSBCI funds to that program. 
 
We reviewed the loans to determine whether they complied with 
program requirements for use-of-proceeds, capital-at-risk, and other 
restrictions in the Act, SSBCI Policy Guidelines, or the SSBCI National 
Standards for Compliance and Oversight (National Standards).  We 
also reviewed all of the $194,101 in administrative costs Mandan 
charged against SSBCI funds to ensure they were allowable, 
reasonable, and allocable in accordance with SSBCI Policy Guidelines 
and Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-87, Cost 
Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Government. 
 
We performed our audit from April 2014 to August 2014 in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards.  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain sufficient and 
appropriate evidence to provide a reasonable basis for our findings and 
conclusions based on our audit objective.  We believe that the 
evidence obtained to address our audit objective provides a reasonable 
basis for our findings and conclusions. 
 

Results in Brief 
 
We determined that Mandan properly used the $8.6 million in SSBCI 
funds we reviewed.  Of that amount, $2.8 million5 financed bridge 
loans to businesses approved for the Small Business Administration 
(SBA) Certified Development Company (CDC)/504 loan program.  
Because the SSBCI-supported loans provided interim financing until 

                                                 
4 Rounded down from $8,606,872. 
5 Rounded down from $2,827,644. 



 
 

 
North Dakota Mandan Consortium’s Use of Federal Funds for its Loan Participation Program Page 3 
(OIG-SBLF-14-013) 

the SBA loans could be secured, the transactions were permissible 
under the SSBCI Policy Guidelines.  However, Treasury’s reporting of 
estimated jobs created or retained as a result of the interim SSBCI 
loans may duplicate data reported by the SBA loan program. 
 
OIG previously noted its concern about duplicate reporting of SBA and 
SSBCI job creation in a report about the audit of Idaho’s SSBCI 
program.6  In its management response to the Idaho report, Treasury 
proposed that it would explain clearly in the Summary of States’ 
Annual Reports that there is a possibility for duplicate reporting of job 
creation and retention figures.  We found Treasury’s response to our 
Idaho audit report responsive to our concerns in Mandan as well. 
 
We also reviewed the administrative costs that Mandan charged to 
SSBCI, which totaled $194,101 as of March 31, 2014.  We found the 
expenditures were reasonable, allowable, and allocable in accordance 
with SSBCI Policy Guidelines and OMB Circular A-87. 
 
Treasury and Mandan officials concurred with the report findings. 
Treasury also expressed appreciation that our report noted Mandan’s 
success in appropriately using and accurately reporting its use of the 
$8.6 million in SSBCI funds.  Formal written responses from Treasury 
and Mandan are included in their entirety in Appendix 2. 
 

Background 
 
SSBCI is a $1.5 billion Treasury program that provides participating 
states, territories, and eligible municipalities with funds to strengthen 
Capital Access Programs and other credit support programs that 
provide financial assistance to small businesses and manufacturers.  
Capital Access Programs provide portfolio insurance for business loans 
based on a separate loan loss reserve fund for each participating 
financial institution.  Other credit support programs include collateral 
support, loan participation, loan guarantee, direct lending, and venture 
capital programs. 
 

                                                 
6 OIG-SBLF-14-010, Idaho’s Use of Funds for its Collateral Support Program, May 15, 2014. 



 
 

 
North Dakota Mandan Consortium’s Use of Federal Funds for its Loan Participation Program Page 4 
(OIG-SBLF-14-013) 

Each participating state is required to designate specific departments, 
agencies, or political subdivisions to administer the funds.  The 
designated state entity distributes SSBCI funds to various public and 
private institutions, which may include a subdivision of another state, 
a for-profit entity supervised by the state, or a non-profit entity 
supervised by the state.  These entities use funds to make loans or 
provide credit access to small businesses. 
 
Primary oversight of the use of SSBCI funds is the responsibility of 
each participating state.  To ensure that funds are properly controlled 
and expended, the Act requires that Treasury execute an Allocation 
Agreement with each participating state, setting forth internal controls 
and compliance and reporting requirements before allocating SSBCI 
funds.  SSBCI disbursements to participating states are made in three 
allocations:  the first when the Secretary approves the state for 
participation, and the second and third after the state certifies that it 
has obligated, transferred, or spent at least 80 percent of the previous 
allocation.  In addition, the participating state is required to certify that 
it has complied with all applicable program requirements. 
 
Mandan Consortium’s Participation in SSBCI 
 
Municipalities in North Dakota had permission to apply for SSBCI 
funds because by November 27, 2010, no state agencies had filed a 
notice of intent to apply for funds, as required in order for a state to 
be eligible for SSBCI funding.  A consortium of 38 municipalities, led 
by the City of Mandan, North Dakota, applied for SSBCI funds.  On 
June 28, 2012, Treasury approved the Mandan Consortium’s 
application for participation in SSBCI, and awarded it approximately 
$9.7 million.  The Allocation Agreement between the Mandan 
Consortium and Treasury was signed on August 31, 2012, and 
authorized use of the SSBCI funds to support Mandan’s LPP.  In 
August 2012, Treasury disbursed Mandan’s first allocation of 
approximately $3.2 million,7 and in July 2013, Treasury approved a 
second allocation, equal to the first, after Mandan certified it had 
expended or obligated over 80 percent of its first disbursement. 

                                                 
7 Rounded down from $3,204,553. 



 
 

 
North Dakota Mandan Consortium’s Use of Federal Funds for its Loan Participation Program Page 5 
(OIG-SBLF-14-013) 

In January 2014, Treasury approved a third allocation of 
approximately $3.3 million8 after Mandan certified it had obligated 
over 80 percent of its second disbursement.  As of March 31, 2014, 
Mandan had obligated or expended approximately $9.1 million of 
the 3 allocations. 
 
Mandan Consortium’s Loan Participation Program 
 
Mandan designated the Lewis and Clark Regional Development 
Council, a non-profit entity, to administer, account for, and report on 
the approved LPP on behalf of and in conjunction with the City of 
Mandan Business Development and Communications Department.  The 
LPP assists borrowers in financing start-up costs, working capital, 
business procurement, franchise fees, equipment, and inventory, as 
well as the purchase, construction, renovation, or tenant 
improvements of an eligible place of business.  In the LPP, a lender 
originates a senior loan and the SSBCI funds provide for a second, 
subordinate loan to the same borrower. 
 

The Mandan Consortium Used Funds Appropriately, but Financed 
Loans that May Cause Duplicate Reporting of Benefits from an 
SBA Loan Program 

 
We determined that Mandan properly used the SSBCI funds we 
reviewed.  All 15 transactions reviewed complied with program 
guidelines related to use of proceeds, capital-at-risk, maximum 
transaction amounts, and other restrictions noted in the Act and 
SSBCI Policy Guidelines.  Mandan also collected complete borrower 
and lender assurances. 
 
However, we identified 5 bridge loans totaling approximately 
$10.2 million9 and supported by $2.8 million10 in SSBCI funding that 
provided interim financing of real estate acquisitions, construction 
projects, or equipment purchases that had been approved for the SBA 

                                                 
8 Rounded down from $3,325,535. 
9 Rounded down from $10,201,382. 
10 Rounded down from $2,827,644. 



 
 

 
North Dakota Mandan Consortium’s Use of Federal Funds for its Loan Participation Program Page 6 
(OIG-SBLF-14-013) 

CDC/504 loan program.  SBA’s CDC/504 loan program provides small 
businesses with long-term, fixed-rate financing to acquire major fixed 
assets, such as equipment or real estate.  Under the CDC/504 
program, a CDC provides the borrower two loans – one secured from 
a private lender and one from the CDC that is backed by a 100-
percent SBA-guaranteed debenture.  Interim financing is typically 
needed to bridge the period between SBA approval of the project and 
replacement of the interim financing with a permanent debenture. 
 
As we noted in our audit of Idaho’s SSBCI Collateral Support Program, 
“SSBCI Policy Guidelines explicitly prohibit the enrollment of SBA-
guaranteed loans in states’ SSBCI programs.  However, Treasury 
officials stated that an SSBCI-supported bridge loan is permitted 
because the SBA-supported loan would repay the loan supported by 
SSBCI funding.  Therefore, SBA does not support the transaction at 
the same time as the SSBCI-supported loan.” 
 
Additionally we found in Idaho “that the SBA CDC/504 loan program 
and SSBCI have similar goals of helping small businesses and 
manufacturers create and maintain jobs, and both programs report 
these job statistics as program accomplishments.  All SSBCI 
participants are required to annually report the borrower’s estimate of 
jobs created and jobs retained with SSBCI funding.  Treasury reports 
these estimates annually as a summary of states’ annual reports.  
Businesses assisted by the CDC/504 program must create or retain 
one job for every $65,000 provided by the SBA, and small 
manufacturers must create or retain one job for every $100,000 
guaranteed by the SBA.  Therefore, Treasury’s reporting of jobs 
created or retained by recipients of SSBCI-supported loans may 
duplicate the accomplishments reported by the SBA.” 
 
In its management response to the Idaho report, Treasury proposed 
that it would explain clearly in its summary of states’ annual reports 
that there is a possibility of duplicate reporting of job creation and 
retention figures.  As in the Idaho report, we consider Treasury’s 
proposed action to be responsive to our concerns in Mandan. 
 



 
 

 
North Dakota Mandan Consortium’s Use of Federal Funds for its Loan Participation Program Page 7 
(OIG-SBLF-14-013) 

Administrative Costs Charged to SSBCI and Reviewed by OIG 
Were Reasonable, Allowable, and Allocable 

 
Our review of all $194,101 in SSBCI funds expended by Mandan for 
administration of its SSBCI programs as of March 31, 2014, found 
that they were reasonable, allowable, and allocable in accordance with 
OMB Circular A-87.  Section 4.2 of the North Dakota Mandan 
Allocation Agreement states that the participating municipality shall 
only use the allocated funds for the purposes and activities specified 
in the agreement and for paying allowable costs of those purposes and 
activities in accordance with principles set forth in OMB Circular A-87.  
Mandan provided supporting documentation for the sampled 
administrative costs charged to the SSBCI program, which showed 
that all sampled expenses were allowable, reasonable, and allocable to 
the program. 
 

Management Comments and OIG Response 
 
We provided a draft of the report to Treasury on August 14, 2014, 
and received formal written comments from Mandan on August 19, 
2014, and from Treasury on August 29, 2014, concurring with the 
report findings.  Formal written responses from Treasury and Mandan 
are included in their entirety in Appendix 2. 
 

* * * * * * * 
 
We appreciate the courtesies and cooperation provided to our staff 
during the evaluation.  If you wish to discuss the report, you may 
contact me at (202) 622-1090, or Clayton Boyce, Audit Director, at 
(202) 927-5642. 
 
 
/s/ 
Debra Ritt 
Special Deputy Inspector General for 
Office of Small Business Lending Fund Program Oversight 



 
 

 
North Dakota Mandan Consortium’s Use of Federal Funds for its Loan Participation Program Page 8 
(OIG-SBLF-14-013) 

Appendix 1:  Objectives, Scope and Methodology 
 

The objective of our audit was to test participant compliance with program 
requirements and prohibitions to identify any reckless or intentional misuse of 
funds.  As of March 31, 2014, the North Dakota Mandan Consortium had 
received its three disbursements totaling approximately $9.7 million1 and had 
obligated or spent $8.9 million.2  All of the funds went to loans enrolled in the 
Loan Participation Program.  Furthermore, $194,101 was expended for the 
administration of the program. 
 
To test compliance with SSBCI program requirements, we reviewed a 
judgmental sample of 15 loans that were enrolled as of March 31, 2014, and 
performed testing to ensure all of the loans complied with the requirements and 
prohibitions of the Small Business Jobs Act of 2010 and SSBCI Policy 
Guidelines.  In June 2014, we conducted a review of loan files at our 
Washington, D.C., office and compared the documentation to specific 
requirements and prohibitions of the Small Business Jobs Act of 2010 and 
SSBCI Policy Guidelines. 
 
We reviewed policies, procedures, and other written guidance provided by 
Mandan and the Lewis and Clark Regional Development Council.  We also 
reviewed the State’s administrative costs charged against SSBCI funds to 
ensure they were reasonable, allowable, and allocable in accordance with SSBCI 
Policy Guidelines and Office of Management and Budget Circular A-87, Cost 
Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Government.  We conducted our 
audit between April 2014 and August 2014, in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain sufficient, appropriate evidence to provide a reasonable basis for 
our findings and conclusions based on our audit objectives.  We believe that the 
evidence obtained to address our audit objectives provides a reasonable basis 
for our findings and conclusions.

                                                 
1 Rounded down from $9,710,768. 
2 Rounded down from $8,943,872. 



 
 

 
North Dakota Mandan Consortium’s Use of Federal Funds for its Loan Participation Program Page 9 
(OIG-SBLF-14-013) 

Appendix 2:  Management Response 
 
 

  



 
 

 
North Dakota Mandan Consortium’s Use of Federal Funds for its Loan Participation Program Page 10 
(OIG-SBLF-14-013) 

 
  



 
 

 
North Dakota Mandan Consortium’s Use of Federal Funds for its Loan Participation Program Page 11 
(OIG-SBLF-14-013) 

Appendix 3:  Major Contributors 
 

Debra Ritt, Special Deputy Inspector General 
 

Clayton Boyce, Audit Director 
 

Andrew Morgan, Audit Manager 
 

Diane Baker, Auditor-in-Charge 
 
Safal Bhattarai, Auditor 

 
Stephen Morgan, Auditor 
 
Jeffrey Rash, Auditor 
 
Joe Berman, Referencer 

 



 
 

 
North Dakota Mandan Consortium’s Use of Federal Funds for its Loan Participation Program Page 12 
(OIG-SBLF-14-013) 

Appendix 4:  Distribution List 
 

Department of the Treasury 
 
Deputy Secretary 
Office of Strategic Planning and Performance Management 
Risk and Control Group 
 
Office of Management and Budget 
 
OIG Budget Examiner 
 
United States Senate 
 
Chairman and Ranking Member 
Committee on Small Business and Entrepreneurship 
 
Chairman and Ranking Member 
Committee on Finance 
 
Chairman and Ranking Member 
Committee on Banking, Housing and Urban Affairs 
 
Chairman and Ranking Member 
Committee on Homeland Security and Governmental Affairs 
 
Chairman and Ranking Member 
Appropriations Subcommittee on Financial Services and General 
Government 
 
United States House of Representatives 
 
Chairman and Ranking Member 
Committee on Small Business 
 
Chairman and Ranking Member 
Committee on Financial Services 
 



 
 

 
North Dakota Mandan Consortium’s Use of Federal Funds for its Loan Participation Program Page 13 
(OIG-SBLF-14-013) 

Chairman and Ranking Member 
Committee on Oversight and Government Reform 
 
Chairman and Ranking Member 
Appropriations Subcommittee on Financial Services and General 
Government 
 
Government Accountability Office 
 
Comptroller General of the United States 
 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

  

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To give an update on the current Street Improvement Projects. 
 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: This item is to update commission on the Street 

Improvement District projects currently under contract. 2014 was a good year for street 

construction in the city. Plans came in earlier, and relatively good construction weather, 

especially in late summer/early fall seemed to help get things buttoned up before winter 

hit. The new development projects that came forward all have asphalt down making it 

easier for builders to access lots to construct over the winter. The items left for many of 

these projects consist of a seal coat and any corrections needed to consider final. Also, the 

reconstruction project out at Roughriders development was buttoned up with all asphalt 

completed. That project is also down to a seal coat to be done next summer and any 

minor corrective items that remain.  
 

The following is an update on the current status of the Street Improvement Projects: 

 

Street Improvement District 161 (Dianes) 

- Project is 99% done.  The seal coat on 4
th

 Avenue NE (below Coulee) and 6
th

 

Avenue NE, and some patching on 5
th

 and 6
th

 Avenue NE. 

Street Improvement District 163 (Sunset Drive) 

- Project is substantially complete. The city conducted an inspection this 

summer and found some outstanding items to be addressed by the contractor 

in order to consider final. The contractor has been addressing those items, but 

a walk with the city, contractor, consulting engineer, and DOT has yet to be 

conducted to verify the corrections.  

Street Improvement District 176 (Mckenzie Drive SE, Genoa court SE and 34
th

 Ave SE) 

- Contractor needs to adjust 6 curb stops in the R/W to finished grade, clean 

inlets, replace damaged concrete curb at west end of McKenzie Drive SE, and 

fill in gaps at the expansion joints in the curb and gutter. 

Street Improvement District 177 (Meadows 6th Addition) 

MEETING DATE: December 16, 2014 

PREPARATION DATE: December 5, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning & Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Update on Street Improvement Projects  

 

  

New Business No. 2 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Update on Street Improvement Projects 

Page 2 of 3 

 

- Contractor needs to raise the 2 east curb ranps at the intersection of 48
th

 Street 

NW and 34
th

 Avenue NW. 

Street Improvement District 178 (Keidel’s South Heart Terrace Phase II)  

- Curb and gutter by valley gutter is not replaced yet.  Planned completion 

spring 2015. 

Street Improvement District 179 (Meadow Ridge 3
rd

 Addition) 

- Project is complete other than verifying that all punch list items have been 

done. 

Street Improvement District 181 (Meadows 7
th

 Addition) 

- Work is completed.  Waiting on final paperwork. 

Street Improvement District 182 (Meadow Ridge 1
st
 Addition) 

- Project is complete other than verifying that all punch list items have been 

done. 

Street Improvement District 185 (Heart Ridge 2
nd

 Addition) 

- Waiting on street signs and final walk through. 

*Street Improvement District 186 (Macedonia Hills 1
st
 Addition) 

-  Project is 90% complete.  Seal coat, valve box adjustments and some grading 

behind curb and gutter.  Street lights are complete but are waiting on Mor-

Gran-Sou Electric to get power to the control cabinet.  Final Completion 

August 15
th

, 2015. 

Street Improvement District 189 (Lakewood 6th Addition Lot 10B, Block 2 Replat) 

- Project is complete other than final walk through and paper work. 

*Street Improvement District 190 (Keidel’s South Heart Terrace 3
rd

 Addition) 

- Project is 80% complete.  Surface lift of asphalt is needed on west half of 

project and seal coat, seeding and street lights are needed throughout the 

project.  Substantial completion date of June 15, 2015 for surface lift of 

asphalt, utility adjustments, seeding, and electrical.  Final completion date of 

August 15
th

, 2015 for seal coat. 

*Street Improvement District 191 (Lincoln Ridge 6
th

 Addition) 

- Project is 90% complete.  Seal coat and seeding remains to be done.  Final 

completion date August 15
th

, 2015. 

*Street Improvement Project 192 (West Hills Estates 3
rd

 Addition) 

- Project 95% complete.  Seal coat remains to be done.  Final completion date 

of August 15
th

, 2015. 

*Street Improvement District 193 (Midway 14
th

 Addition) 

-  Project is 90% complete.  Seal coat and seeding remains to be done.  Final 

completion date of August 15
th

, 2015. 

*Street Improvement District 195 (Roughriders) 

- Project is 90 % complete. Seal coat and final walk through remain. Final 

completion date of July 15
th

 2015.     

 

*  Denotes that project started in 2014.  

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Update on Street Improvement Projects 

Page 3 of 3 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   None 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:    N/A. 
    

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 
 

LEGAL REVIEW:   N/A. 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  For information only. 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  None needed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 
  

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE.  Staff is proposing to prepare an ordinance and design standards that 

update the requirements for construction of sidewalks and driveway aprons. 
 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES.  Certain construction requirements related to installation of 

driveway aprons and sidewalks within public rights-of-way need to be updated.  These proposed 

changes were developed after reviewing the results of the last construction season.  Some items 

will be included in the city code and other items will be included in the specifications and details 

adopted by resolution of the board. 

 

1. There have been far too many unqualified individuals attempting to install sidewalks and 

driveway aprons.  It is appropriate to require that all work be performed by a contractor 

licensed by the state.  The contractor must have proper insurance and be able to obtain a 

bond to insure successful completion of the work. 

2. Name stamps should be required on all jobs.  If a problem develops after construction, 

the stamp provides an easy way of determining who needs to be contacted to correct the 

problem. 

3. Proper framing needs to be done. 

a. Dimensional lumber is not true size.  Requirements need to be spelled out that 

mandate a full 4 inch pour, not just the 3 ½ inches of the depth of a standard 2 x 4. 

b. Expansion material cannot be used as a form. 

c. Expansion material must be the full depth of the pour. 

d. Expansion material must be placed everywhere needed. 

e. Framing needs to be completed before calling for an inspection. 

4. A reasonable timeframe for responding to inspections needs to be established. 

5. Requirements for base course need to be updated. 

6. The width of driveways is excessive.  Because the driveways are allowed to be so wide, 

there is no room to park vehicles along the street between the driveways.  If you can’t 

park vehicles along the street, why have a parking lane? 

7. The offsets from fire hydrants and utility poles need to be clearly spelled out and 

enforced.  This applies to both driveways and sidewalks.  There are numerous examples 

where the fire hydrant is in the sidewalk or too close to a driveway. 

8. All utility covers need to be brought up to grade before pouring the sidewalk or driveway 

apron.  This needs to be done in a manner that allows for differential settlement due to 

MEETING DATE: December 16, 2014 

PREPARATION DATE: December 12, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Robert Decker, P.E., Principal Planner 

SUBJECT: Update on forthcoming changes to the city’s sidewalk and 

driveway standard specifications, details, and ordinance 

sections.  

 

  

New Business No. 3 

  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Update on forthcoming changes to the city’s sidewalk and driveway standard 

specifications, details, and ordinance sections 

Page 2 of 2 

 

frost heave. 

9. A specific timeframe needs to be established for completing sidewalks in front of lots that 

already have an occupied structure. 

10. A formal procedure needs to be developed for when and how to have the city build a 

sidewalk if the property owner refuses. 

11. A handout or brochure needs to be created that explains the requirements and the process. 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE: The Board of City Commissioners makes appointments to the 

Mandan Airport Authority. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: The Mandan Airport Authority consists of 5 

members who are Dr. Dale Klein, Mike Braun, Marc Taylor, Lee Weinhandl and Mike 

Wagner. The Airport Authority is tasked with managing the affairs of Mandan Airport. 

There is currently one position up for appointment due to a resignation. The term would 

be January 1, 2015 through December 2015. In order to solicit interested parties 

announcements were placed in the Mandan News on November, 2014, on the Mandan 

Airport and City of Mandan’s website and word of mouth. 

 

Letters of interest were received, which are attached. 

 

There was a 6 question interview with the Board and Airport Manager scoring on a scale 

of one to three. Mr. Brown scored the highest with highlights being years of experience 

as a pilot, aircraft owner, involved in Chamber Board, Chief Financial Officer 

experience, currently runs his own business as national business in Information 

Technology, serves on other groups within his industry, involved in local and national 

aviation groups and organizations, has the ability to commit time to the Airport Authority 

Board and aviation issues. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Letters of Interest: 

   Chris Brown    Mike Gardner 

   Mike Blasco    Tyler Blair 

RD Reimers Paul Rowe-asked to be 

removed from consideration 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 

 

MEETING DATE: December 16, 2014 

PREPARATION DATE: December 10, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Mandan Airport 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Lawler, Manager Mandan Municipal Airport 

PRESENTER: Jim Lawler, Manager, Mandan Airport Authority 

SUBJECT: Appointment to the Mandan Airport Authority 

 

  

New Business No. 4  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Appointment to the Mandan Airport Authority 

Page 2 of 8 

 

STAFF IMPACT: N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW: N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  The Mandan Airport Authority met on December 9, 2014 and 

interviewed 5 of the 6 applicants and recommends the appointment of Chris Brown. The 

term of the position on Mandan Airport Authority will be January 1, 2015, through 

December 31, 2015. 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to appoint Chris Brown to the Mandan Airport 

Authority for a period of 1 year ending December 31, 2015. 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Appointment to the Mandan Airport Authority 

Page 3 of 8 

 

  
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Appointment to the Mandan Airport Authority 

Page 4 of 8 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Appointment to the Mandan Airport Authority 

Page 5 of 8 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Appointment to the Mandan Airport Authority 

Page 6 of 8 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Appointment to the Mandan Airport Authority 

Page 7 of 8 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Appointment to the Mandan Airport Authority 

Page 8 of 8 

 

 
 

 



RESOLUTIONS #1 AND #2

Board of City Commissioners

Agenda Documentation

"WHERE THE WEST BEGINS"

MEETING DATE:
PREPARATION DATE:
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT:
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR:
PRESENTER:
SUBJECT:

December 16, 2014
December 15,2014
Finance
Greg Welch, Finance Director
Greg Welch, Finance Director
$6,095,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of
2014, Series B.

PURPOSES
1. To approve the Financing Resolution for Storm Sewer Improvement District #32,

Water and Sewer Improvement District #61, and Street Improvement Districts
#161, #163, #174, #180, #187 Definitive Improvement Warrants.

2. To approve the Resolution Authorizing Issuance of $6,095,000 Refunding
Improvement Bonds of2014, Series B.

BACKGROUND
On December 2, 2014, the Board of City Commissioners approved the Resolution
Awarding Sale of Warrants and Bonds for $6,095,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of
2014, Series B to finance the improvements for the following infrastructure projects:

• Storm Sewer Improvement District #32 (Sunset Drive NW - 8th Street NW to 14th

Street NW) = $129,844.09
• Water and Sewer Improvement District #61 (Sunset Drive NW and 6th Avenue

NW - 8th Street NW to 18th Street NW) = $1,179,246.39
• Street Improvement District #161 (Diane's - Various Areas) = $3,194,051.17
• Street Improvement District #163 (Sunset Drive NW - 7th Street NW to 18th

Street NW) = $522,759.78
• Street Improvement District #174 (Plainview Heights 13th Addition - Shires Drive

SE, Suffolk Drive SE, and 14th Avenue SE) = $462,819.99
• Street Improvement District #180 (Plainview Heights 14th Addition - Shires Drive

SE, Nordland Way SE, and Percheron Drive SE) = $494,964.41
• Street Improvement District #187 (Mandan Municipal Golf Course Parking Lot

and adjacent alleys in Block 47 of Southside Addition) = $111,314.17



Board of City Commissioners
Agenda Documentation
Meeting Date: December 16,2014
Subject: $6,095,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of2014, Series B
Page 2 of3

On November 20,2014, Moody's Investors Service assigned an AI rating to the City of
Mandan's $6,095,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2014, Series B. Additionally;
Moody's maintained the Al rating on the City's outstanding bonds.

The approval ofthese Resolutions is required to complete the Bond Sale.

ATTACHMENTS
• Financing Resolution for Storm Sewer Improvement District #32, Water and

Sewer Improvement District #61, and Street Improvement Districts #161, #163,
#174, #180, #187 Definitive Improvement Warrants.

• Resolution Authorizing Issuance of $6,095,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of
2014, Series B.

FISCAL IMPACT
The proceeds from the sale of warrants and bonds are summarized as follows:

• $15,146,092.58 for construction, engineering, legal, testing and inspection, and
other expenditures.

• $104,667.44 for bonding and financing related costs.
• Less $2,436,771.60 from federal/state funds.
• Less $1,563,988.42 from City funds.
• Less $5,155,000.00 from prior financing.

The City assessed these Districts in 2014 for certification to the County by November 1,
2014 and for collection to begin in 2015. The assessment period for these Districts will be
15 years to match the term of the Bonds. The interest rate on the bonds is 2.7883% and
the interest rate on the assessments is 4.2883%, no assessment interest the first year.

STAFF IMPACT
None

LEGAL REVIEW
Steve Vogelpohl, Bond Counsel, prepared the Resolutions

RECOMMENDATIONS
• To approve the Financing Resolution for Storm Sewer Improvement District #32,

Water and Sewer Improvement District #61, and Street Improvement Districts
#161, #163, #174, #180, #187 Definitive Improvement Warrants.

• To approve the Resolution Authorizing Issuance of $6,095,000 Refunding
Improvement Bonds of2014, Series B.



Board of City Commissioners
Agenda Documentation
Meeting Date: December 16,2014
Subject: $6,095,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of2014, Series B
Page 300

SUGGESTED MOTIONS
• Move to approve the Financing Resolution for Storm Sewer Improvement District

#32, Water and Sewer Improvement District #61, and Street Improvement
Districts #161, #163, #174, #180, #187 Definitive Improvement Warrants.

• Move to approve the Resolution Authorizing Issuance of $6,095,000 Refunding
Improvement Bonds of2014, Series B.



Greg Welch

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Attachments:

Greg,

Steven Vogelpohl
Wednesday, December 10, 2014 4:35 PM
Greg Welch
Brown, Malcolm H.
Resolutions for December 16 - Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2014, Series B
Financing Resolution.pdf; Resolution Authorizing Issuance.pdf

Attached are two resolutions for adoption by the City Commission on December 16 in the order listed,
as follows:

--11. Financing Resolution (re Warrants); and

2. Resolution Authorizing Issuance of $6,095,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2014, Series B.

As we discussed, I will be providing you copies of the Resolutions for signing.

Thank you for your assistance and please contact me if you've any questions.

Steve

1



CITY OF MANDAN
COUNTY OF MORTON

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA

FINANCING RESOLUTION

$129,844.09
STORM SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 32

$1,179,246.39
WATER AND SEWER 1M PROVEM ENT DISTRICT NO. 61

$3,194,051.17
STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 161

$522,759.78
STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 163

$462,819.99
STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 174

$494,964.41
STREET 1M PROVEM ENT DISTRICT NO. 180

$111,314.17
STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 187

DEFINITIVE 1M PROVEM ENT WARRANTS

RECITALS

The City of Mandan, North Dakota (the" City"), a political subdivision and
municipal corporation of the State of North Dakota, incorporated under the provisions
of Title 40 (Municipal Government) of the North Dakota Century Code (the" NDCC"),
with full power and authority to cause improvement districts to be created and
improvements to be made therein and assess the costs of the improvements against
benefited property and incur debt for the payment of the cost of such improvements
recites that by resolution or ordinance, the City:

1. Created Storm Sewer Improvement District No. 32 (" District No. 32") on
November 6, 2012, Water and Sewer Improvement District No. 61
("District No. 61") on November 6,2012, Street Improvement District
No. 161 (" District No. 161") on November 1, 2011, Street Improvement
District No. 163 ("District No. 163") on November 6, 2012, Street
Improvement District No. 174 (" District No. 174") on August 21, 2012,
Street Improvement District No. 180 (" District No. 180") on June 18,
2013 and Street Improvement District No. 187 ("District No. 187") on
June 18,2013 (hereinafter, together, the "Districts"). In the judgment
of the governing body, after consultation with the engineer planning the
improvements, the Districts are of a size and form as to include all

1



properties which will be benefited by construction of the respective
improvements therein;

2. Deemed it necessary to make the improvements authorized by law within
the Districts and directed the engineer therefor to prepare reports as to
the general nature, purpose and feasibility of the proposed improvements
and estimates of the probable costs of the improvements;

3. After receiving, approving and ordering the engineer's reports filed,
directed the engineer to prepare detailed plans and specifications for
construction of the improvements;

4. Approved the detailed plans and specifications for construction of the
improvements, thereby establishing any necessary grades, and directed
a copy of the plans, specifications and estimates be filed in the office of
the City Administrator;

5. With respect to District No. 161 and District No. 163, caused to be
adopted and published resolutions of necessity including maps of the
City, or such portions of the City as necessary to clearly identify said
Districts, show ing said proposed improvement Districts and referring
intelligibly to the engineer's reports and published the resolutions of
necessity once each week for two consecutive weeks in the official
newspaper of the City and after the expiration of the time for filing
protests determined the protests, if any, to be insufficient there not
having been filed protests containing the names of the owners of a
majority of the area of the property included within each of said Districts
or the names of the ow ners of a majority of any separate property area
included within each of said Districts;

6. With respect to District No. 32 and District No. 61, determined that
resolutions of necessity were not required as the improvements
constitute water or sewer improvements as described in subsection 1 of
NDCC Section 40-22-01;

7. With respect to District No. 174, District No. 180 and District No. 187,
determined that resolutions of necessity were not required as written
petitions for each of the respective improvements received by the City
were signed by the owners of a majority of the area of the property
included within each respective District;

8. With respect to the Districts, entered into contracts for construction of
the improvements in accordance with law;

2



9. With respect to District No. 161, issued on its Fund a $5,155,000.00
Definitive Improvement Warrant, outstanding and issued for the purpose
of defraying a portion of the cost of the improvement for such District;
and

10. Performed all other acts required of the governing body by the
constitution and laws of the State of North Dakota prerequisite to the
issuance and sale of improvement warrants for the purpose of providing
money to pay for the cost of the improvements in the manner required
of the City by law with full power and authority conferred on it as a
political subdivision of the State of North Dakota and does hereby ratify,
confirm and adopt all acts performed, resolutions, motions or ordinances
passed or adopted and publications had in and incidental to the
construction and financing of the improvements in the Districts whether
or not reflected on the official minutes and records of the City.

BE IT RESOLVED:

CONDITIONS AND AGREEMENTS

1. The Definitive Improvement Warrants (the "Warrants" or individually, the
"Warrant") authorized to be issued by the terms of this Resolution are
issued for the purpose of defraying the cost of the improvements un
defrayed and are issued pursuant to the terms and provisions of NDCC
Section 40-24-19, as amended.

2. The total cost of the improvements for each of the respective Districts,
including construction, engineering, administrative, any land or easement
acquisition required, and other fees and all other expenses incidental to
the completion of the improvements, are estimated to be not less than
as follows:

District
District No. 32
Dist rict No. 61
District No. 161
District No. 163
District No. 174
District No. 180
District No. 187

3

Estimated Cost
$ 129,844.09
1,179,246.39
8,349,051.17

522,759.78
462,819.99
494,964.41
111,314.17



3. The City has performed all statutorily required procedures preliminary to
the issuance of the Warrants and asserts that as a condition of issuance,
all required acts, conditions and things prerequisite to issue do exist and
have been performed by the governing body which is legally constituted
and empowered to bind the City.

4. All monies required to be deposited in the Principal and Interest Accounts
of the Funds referenced by this Resolution and any other monies from
whatever source dedicated to the retirement of the warrants payable
from the Funds are hereby dedicated and appropriated to the payment of
outstanding principal and interest on the respective Warrants properly
chargeable against the Funds when due and payable.

5. All monies required to be deposited in the Construction Accounts of the
Funds created by this Resolution are hereby dedicated and appropriated
to the payment w hen due and payable of the construction cost of the
improvements related thereto and all administrative costs and fees
incident to the construction and the issuance of the respective Warrants
on the Funds, and to the reimbursement of the City for funds advanced
from other sources for such purposes.

6. Expenditure of monies from the Funds shall be made and accounted for
by the officers of the City empowered to expend and required to account
for City general funds.

7. Whenever all special assessments and any other revenues or taxes
appropriated and theretofore collected for any special improvement are
insufficient to pay principal or interest then due on the Warrant issued
against such improvement's respective Fund, the City w ill levy a tax
upon all taxable property in the City for the payment of such deficiency.
If a deficiency is likely to occur within one year in any such Fund the
governing body, in its discretion, may levy a general tax upon all the
taxable property in the City.

8. Special assessments have or will be certified to the Special Assessment
Commission for spreading against benefited property of the Districts.
The City agrees to take whatever action is necessary to cause a final levy
to be made against benefited property of each of the Districts in an
amount not less than the total cost of the respective improvement
therein. The City w ill cause the installments of special assessments as
finally confirmed by the City to be annually certified to the County
Auditor for collection with the general taxes chargeable against the
property in the Districts. The City w ill continue to cause annual

4



certification of balances of special assessments unpaid for the Districts
to be certified for repayment over a period of years, subject to a
reduction or extension of such period of time as may be deemed
necessary by the City due to collection of assessments, with the first
certification and for first collection in the years, respectively, as follows,
and annually thereafter:

District
District No. 32
District No. 61
District No. 161
District No. 163
District No. 174
District No. 180
District No. 187

Repayment
Period (Years)

15
15
15
15
15
15
15

Year
Of First

Certification
2014
2014
2014
2014
2014
2014
2014

Year
Of First

Collection
2015
2015
2015
2015
2015
2015
2015

9. The City authorizes officers of the City and Morton County to furnish
certified copies of all proceedings had with regard to the issuance of the
Warrants on the Funds by the governing body of the City. The City
agrees to furnish additional certifications of its officers as are necessary
to establish the validity of the Warrants, the tax-exempt status of interest
payable thereon, the absence of litigation materially affecting the
issuance of the Warrants and any other certifications or information
reasonably necessary to insure marketability and compliance with the
conditions of underw riting.

10. The City covenants that (i) it will restrict the use of the proceeds of the
Warrants in such manner and to such extent as may be necessary, in
view of the City's reasonable expectations at the time of issuance of the
Warrants, so that the Warrants w ill not constitute" arbitrage bonds"
under Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and regulations
prescribed under such Section, and (ii) it w ill take all actions that may be
required of it (including, without implied limitation, the timely filing of a
federal information return with respect to the Warrants) so that the
interest on the Warrants will be and remain excluded from gross income
for federal income tax purposes, and w ill not take any actions which
would adversely affect such exclusion.

11. The Warrants issued on the Funds may be exchanged for Refunding
Improvement Bonds of 2014, Series B, in principal amounts aggregating

5



the total principal balance due on the Warrants at the time of such
exchange, at the option of the registered ow ner of the Warrants.

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT FUNDS

There is established Street Improvement District No. 161 Fund ("District No.
161 Fund") created by financing resolution adopted November 6, 2012 and is hereby
created Storm Sewer Improvement District No. 32 Fund ("District No. 32 Fund"),
Water and Sewer Improvement District No. 61 Fund ("District No. 61 Fund"), Street
Improvement District No. 163 Fund (" District No. 163 Fund"), Street Improvement
District No. 174 Fund (" District No. 174 Fund"), Street Improvement District No. 180
Fund ("District No. 180 Fund") and Street Improvement District No. 187 Fund
(" District No. 187 Fund") which are the funds upon which the Warrants are draw nand
payable as provided herein and which have been hereinbefore and are hereinafter
referred to together as the "Funds" or individually, the "Fund".

Each of the Funds shall be held by the City Administrator of the City and shall
at all times be kept on deposit with a qualified depository of public funds as provided
in Chapter 21-04, North Dakota Century Code, as a special fund for the sole purpose
of payment of all costs incidental to the construction and financing of its respective
improvement and principal and interest on any outstanding warrant or bond, temporary
or definitive, secured thereby, and shall be maintained until all balances of principal or
interest on the respective Warrant issued thereon are fully paid. There is or shall be
established and maintained within each of the Funds the following accounts:

1. A Construction Account, into which shall be deposited the respective net
sale proceeds of the Warrant issued on the respective Fund which are not
required to be deposited to the Principal and Interest Account thereof,
togetherw ith any additional monies pledged to defraying the construction
cost of the related improvement; and

2. A Principal and Interest Account, into which there shall be deposited the
accrued interest and any funded interest on the respective Warrant issued
thereon w hen sold, any paid, prepaid, and all future collections of special
assessments from the District for which the respective Fund was
created, and any balances remaining in the respective Construction
Account therefor w hen after consultation with the project engineer it is
determined unlikely that any additional costs properly payable therefrom
will arise.

6



Disbursements from the Construction Accounts for construction costs and the
Principal and Interest Accounts for principal and interest payments shall be by warrant
duly signed by the Executive Officer and the City Administrator of the City.

WARRANTS

In anticipation of the levy and collection of assessments and any other taxes or
revenues pledged to pay for the respective improvements, the City herew ith
determines it to be in its best interests to issue the Warrants on the Funds created for
the Districts. The City covenants that it will diligently pursue completion of the
improvements, if not completed prior to the date of this resolution, and cause valid and
final levy of special assessments upon all properties within each of the Districts to be
benefited by the respective improvement therefor, in an aggregate principal amount for
each improvement equal to the total cost of the respective improvement to benefited
property as finally ascertained representing that the aggregate benefits to be derived
from the making of each respective improvement to the properties to be assessed
therefor are not less than the aggregate amount of the special assessments so required
to be levied. The Warrants are hereby authorized for issuance and shall be issued
according to the follow ing terms and conditions:

1. Principal Amounts and Denominations - One Warrant shall be issued on
each of the Funds, in principal amount and denomination, respectively,
as follows:

District No. 32
District No. 61
District No. 161
District No. 163
District No. 174
District No. 180
District No. 187

Principal Amount

$ 129,844.09
1,179,246.39
3,194,051.17

522,759.78
462,819.99
494,964.41
111,314.17

Denomination

$ 129,844.09
1,179,246.39
3,194,051.17

522,759.78
462,819.99
494,964.41
111,314.17

2. Date of Warrant - Each Warrant shall be dated December 15, 2014;

3. Maturity - The principal of each Warrant shall be payable in installments
due annually on May 1 in the years and amounts provided on the
Amortization and Interest Rate Schedule for each respective Warrant
which is Attachment 1 hereto;

4. Type and Number of Warrant - Single fully registered definitive warrant,
numbered R-1 or upward therefrom if subsequent drawn on the
respective Fund;

7



5. Prepayment - The installments of principal due on each Warrant in 2021
and thereafter shall be subject to prepayment, at the option of the City,
in inverse order of maturity, in w hole or in part, on May 1,2020, and on
any date thereafter selected by the City, at par plus accrued interest; not
less than thirty (30) days prior to the date specified for prepayment, the
City shall cause notice of prepayment to be mailed or delivered to the
registered owner of the Warrant;

6. Payment - The Mandan City Administrator, hereby designated Registrar
and Paying Agent, will make payment of interest and principal when due
in lawful money of the United States by mailing or delivering to the
respective registered ow ner of each Warrant a check or draft in an
amount sufficient to meet principal and interest maturities on the
respective Warrant;

7. Preparation, Execution and Delivery - EachWarrant shall be printed under
the supervision and at the direction of the City Administrator, executed
and authenticated by the signature of the Executive Officer of the City
and attested to by the City Administrator and sealed and delivered to the
buyer at closing upon receipt of the purchase price plus any accrued
interest;

8. Interest - Each annual installment of principal of each respective Warrant
shall bear interest from the date of the Warrant until such installment is
paid at the annual rate show n opposite the respective installment on
Attachment 1 hereto, which interest shall be payable semiannually on
May 1 and November 1 in each year, commencing May 1, 2015;

9. Source of Payment/Security - Each Warrant is payable as to principal and
interest from the respective Fund on which it is issued, each of the Funds
deriving its revenues from the levy and collection of special assessments
against benefited property;

10. Registration - Each Warrant shall be registered as to both principal and
interest and the Registrar shall establish and maintain a book of registry
for the purposes of recording the names and addresses of the registered
owners or assigns, the dates of such registration and the due dates and
amounts for payment of principal and interest on each respective
Warrant; and the City and the Registrar may treat the person in whose
name each respective Warrant is registered as the absolute owner
thereof, whether the Warrant is overdue or not, for the purpose of
receiving payment of principal and interest and all other purposes, and
shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary;

8



11. Assignment - Each Warrant shall be transferable by its respective
registered ow ner or the ow ner' s attorney duly authorized in writing upon
presentation thereof to the Registrar together with a written instrument
of transfer satisfactory to the Registrar duly executed by the registered
owner or its attorney, and each such transfer shall be made on the book
of registry and noted on the reverse of the Warrant by the Registrar and
the Warrant delivered to the transferee.

Each Warrant shall be reproduced in substantially the form attached hereto as
Attachment 2, with suitable variations as to District designations and principal and
interest amounts and maturities.

Sale of the Warrants (and the Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2014, Series B,
for which the Warrants are to be exchanged) was awarded by resolution adopted on
December 2,2014.

9



Attest:

City Administrator

(SEAL)

10

CITY OF MANDAN

President, Board of City Commissioners



The governing body of the political subdivision acted on the foregoing resolution

on December 16,2014, as follows:

Adoption moved by Seconded by _

Roll Call Vote (List Last Names)

"Aye" _

IINay
ll -----------------------------

Absent _

and after vote the presiding officer declared the resolution adopted.

11



Greg Welch

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Attachments:

Steven Vogelpohl
Wednesday, December 10, 2014 4:35 PM
Greg Welch
Brown, Malcolm H.
Resolutions for December 16 - Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2014, Series B
Financing Resolution.pdf; Resolution Authorizing Issuance.pdf

Attached are two resolutions for adoption by the City Commission on December 16 in the order listed,
as follows:

1. Financing Resolution (re Warrants); and

-7 2. Resolution Authorizing Issuance of $6,095,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2014, Series B.

As we discussed, I will be providing you copies of the Resolutions for signing.

Thankyou for your assistance and please contact me if you've any questions.

Steve

1



CITY OF MANDAN
COUNTY OF MORTON

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ISSUANCE OF
$6,095,000

REFUNDING IMPROVEMENT BONDS OF 2014, SERIES B

RECITALS

The City of Mandan, North Dakota (the "City" or "Issuer") recites that it has:

1. Authorized issuance of a $129,844.09 Definitive Improvement Warrant,
a $1,179,246.39 Definitive Improvement Warrant, a $3,194,051.17
Definitive Improvement Warrant, a $522,759.78 Definitive Improvement
Warrant, a $462,819.99 Definitive Improvement Warrant, a
$494,964.41 Definitive Improvement Warrant, and a $111,314.17
Definitive Improvement Warrant (the "Warrants"), respectively, on Storm
Sewer Improvement District No. 32 Fund, Water and Sewer Improvement
District No. 61 Fund, Street Improvement District No. 161 Fund, Street
Improvement District No. 163 Fund, Street Improvement District No. 174
Fund, Street Improvement District No. 180 Fund and Street Improvement
District No. 187 Fund (the "Funds") of the City, which Warrants are
outstanding as of the date of this Resolution Authorizing Issuance of
$6,095,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2014, Series B (the
"Resolution ").

2. Consented to the exchange of Refunding Improvement Bonds for the
Warrants at the option of the registered owner.

3. In anticipation of the registered owner's request for exchange, the City
hereby authorizes issuance of its Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2014,
Series B, as authorized by Chapter 40-27, NDCC, in the amount of
$6,095,000 for the purpose of consolidating the issues of Warrants.

4. The Financing Resolution authorizing issuance of the Warrants adopted
December 16, 2014, by the governing body of the City is incorporated
herein by reference as though set out in full except that in the event of
conflict between any of the terms and provisions of the Financing
Resolution and this Resolution, the terms and provisions of this
Resolution shall prevail.

1



REFUNDING FUND

There is hereby created City of Mandan Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2014,
Series B Fund (the "Refunding Fund") which shall be maintained by the City
Administrator as a special fund for the sale purpose of payment of principal and
interest on any outstanding City of Mandan Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2014,
Series B (the "Bonds") and shall be maintained until all balances of principal and
interest on the Bonds are fully paid. The Refunding Fund shall exchange the Bonds for
the uncancelled Warrants and retain the Warrants as assets of the Refunding Fund.
The Refunding Fund shall maintain a Principal and Interest Account into which all
principal and interest received on the Warrants shall be deposited and disbursed
according to the maturities of the Bonds hereinafter established. Monies in the
Refunding Fund for the payment of principal and interest on the Bonds are hereby
dedicated and appropriated.

BONDS

Sale having been awarded to Hutchinson, Shockey, Erley & Co. (the
"Purchaser") by resolution adopted December 2, 2014, the Bonds shall be issued
according to the following terms and conditions:

1. Principal Amount of Bonds - The total principal amount of Bonds shall be
$6,095,000 and shall consist of $5,295,000 aggregate principal amount
of serial bonds (the "Serial Bonds") and $800,000 aggregate principal
amount of term bonds (the "Term Bonds") as set out in the Schedule of
Maturities and Interest Rates attached hereto as Attachment 1.

2. Book Entry Registration -

(a) The Bonds shall be issued as book entry bonds as required by The
Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC") in the
aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of the Bonds.
The Bonds shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of
DTC, and the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent named in Paragraph 5
below (the "Bond Registrar and Paying Agent") shall treat the record
owner as the absolute owner of the Bonds. So long as Cede & Co. is the
registered owner of the Bonds, references herein to the Bondholder,
owner, etc. shall mean Cede & Co. and shall not mean the beneficial
owners of the Bonds. Sales by purchasers of the Bonds of beneficial
interest participations in the Bonds to beneficial owners will be limited to
minimum denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple in excess
thereof.

2



(b) With respect to the Bonds registered in the registration books kept
by the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent in the name of Cede & Co., as
nominee of OTC, the City and the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent shall
have no responsibility or obligation to any Participant (as referenced in
the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations a copy of which is attached
hereto as Attachment 3) or to any person on behalf of which a
Participant holds an interest in the Bonds. Without limiting the
immediately preceding sentence, the City and the Bond Registrar and
Paying Agent shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i)
the accuracy of the records of OTC, Cede & Co. or any Participant with
respect to any ownership interest in the Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any
Participant or any other person, other than a Bondholder, as shown in the
registration books kept by the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent, of any
notice with respect to the Bonds, including any notice of redemption, or
(iii) the payment to any Participant or any other person, other than a
Bondholder, as shown in the registration books kept by the Bond
Registrar and Paying Agent, of any amount with respect to principal of,
premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds. The City and the Bond
Registrar and Paying Agent may treat and consider the person in whose
name each Bond is registered in the registration books kept by the Bond
Registrar and Paying Agent as the holder and absolute owner of such
Bond for the purpose of payment of principal, premium, if any, and
interest with respect to such Bond, for the purpose of giving notices of
redemption and other matters with respect to such Bond, for the purpose
of registering transfers with respect to such Bond, and for all other
purposes whatsoever. The Bond Registrar and Paying Agent shall pay all
principal of, premium, if any, and the interest on the Bonds only to or
upon the order of the respective Bondholders, as shown in the
registration books kept by the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent, or their
respective attorneys duly authorized in writing, and all such payments
shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the City's
obligations with respect to payment of principal of, premium, if any, and
interest on the Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. No
person other than a Bondholder, as shown in the registration books kept
by the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent, shall receive a certificated Bond
evidencing the obligation of the City to make payments of principal,
premium, if any, and interest pursuant to this Resolution. Upon delivery
by OTC to the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent of written notice to the
effect that OTC has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of
Cede & Co., and subject to the provisions herein with respect to record
dates, the word "Cede & Co." shall refer to such new nominee of OTC.

3



(c) The Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations, a copy of which is
attached hereto as Attachment 3, has been executed by the City and has
been filed with DTC. The Bond Registrar and Paying Agent shall take all
actions necessary to at all times comply with DTC's Operational
Arrangements, as same may be amended from time to time.

(d) (1) DTC may determine to discontinue providing its services with
respect to the Bonds at any time by giving notice to the City and
the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent.

(2) The City may terminate the services of DTC with respect to
the Bonds if the City determines that:

(i) DTC is unable to discharge its responsibilities with
respect to the Bonds, or

(ii) A continuance of the requirement that all of the
outstanding Bonds be registered in the registration books
kept by the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent in the name of
Cede & Co., or any other nominee of DTC, is not in the best
interest of the beneficial owners of the Bonds.

(3) Upon the termination of the services of DTC with respect to
the Bonds, or upon the discontinuance or termination of the
services of DTC with respect to any portion of the Bonds pursuant
to either Paragraph 2(d)(2)(i) or Paragraph 2(d)(2)(ii) immediately
above after which no substitute bond depository willing to
undertake the functions of DTC hereunder can be found which, in
the opinion of the City, is willing and able to undertake such
functions upon reasonable and customary terms, the City is
obligated to deliver Bond certificates to the Bondholders and the
Bonds shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the
registration books kept by the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent in
the name of Cede & Co. as nominee of DTC, but may be
registered in whatever name or names the Bondholders transferring
or exchanging Bonds shall designate, in accordance with the
provisions of this Resolution.

(e) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution to the
contrary, so long as any Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co.,
as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect to principal of, premium,
if any, and interest on such Bond and all notices with respect to such

4



Bond shall be made and given, respectively, in accordance with the
Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations.

3. Numbering - The Bonds shall be numbered in consecutive numerical order
from R-1 upwards as issued.

4. Date of Bonds - The Bonds shall initially be dated December 15, 2014.
Bonds issued upon exchanges and transfers of Bonds shall also be dated
December 15, 2014 if issued prior to May 1, 2015, and if issued upon
such exchanges and transfers on or after May 1, 2015, shall be dated as
of May 1 or November 1 next preceding their issuance, or if the date of
issuance shall be a May 1 or November 1, as of such date; provided,
however, that if interest on the Bonds shall be in default, the Bonds shall
be dated as of the date to which interest has been paid in full on the
Bonds being transferred.

5. Payment - Interest on the Bonds and, upon presentation and surrender
thereof, the principal thereof shall be payable in lawful money of the
United States of America by check, draft or wire transfer by Starion Bond
Services, Bismarck, North Dakota, as Bond Registrar and Paying Agent,
or its successor. In the event the Bonds are no longer registered as
book-entry bonds pursuant to Paragraph 2 immediately above, such Bond
Registrar and Paying Agent is hereby appointed the sale paying agent for
the Bonds.

6. Principal Maturities - The Serial Bonds shall mature on May 1 in the years
and in the amounts set forth in the Schedule of Maturities and Interest
Rates attached hereto as Attachment 1. The Term Bonds shall mature
and shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to
maturity at a price of 100% of the principal amount to be redeemed plus
accrued interest to the redemption date, on the dates and in the principal
amounts set forth opposite each such date as set out in the Schedule of
Maturities and Interest Rates attached hereto as Attachment 1. Term
Bonds to be redeemed as a result of such mandatory sinking fund
redemption requirements shall be selected by the Bond Registrar and
Paying Agent from the outstanding Term Bonds by lot, assigned in
proportion to their principal amount, or by other method of random
selection, without further direction from the City. Not less than 30 days
prior to each date specified for such mandatory redemption, the Bond
Registrar and Paying Agent shall mail notice of such redemption to the
registered owner of each of the Term Bonds to be redeemed. Upon each
partial redemption of any Term Bond as a result of such mandatory
redemption, a new Term Bond or Term Bonds will be delivered to the

5



owner without charge, representing the remaining principal amount
outstanding.

7. Optional Redemption - Bonds maturing in the years 2015 through 2020
are payable on their respective stated maturity dates without option of
prior payment. Bonds maturing in the years 2021 and thereafter shall be
subject to redemption and prepayment in whole or in part at the option
of the City, in any order of maturities and by lot, assigned in proportion
to their principal amount, within any maturity, on May 1, 2020, and on
any date thereafter selected by the City, at a price equal to the principal
amount thereof plus accrued interest. Not less than 30 days prior to the
date specified for prepayment and redemption of any Bonds the City will
cause notice of the call thereof to be mailed to the registered owner and
to the paying agent at which principal and interest are then payable.
Upon partial redemption of any Bond, a new Bond or Bonds will be
delivered to the owner without charge, representing the remaining
principal amount outstanding.

8. Type and Denomination of Bonds - The Bonds shall be in fully registered
form in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, of
single maturities.

9. Form, Preparation. Execution and Delivery - The Bonds shall be
reproduced in substantially the form attached to this Resolution as
Attachment 2. The Bonds shall be prepared under the supervision and
at the direction of the City Administrator, executed by the manual or
facsimile signature of the President of the Board of City Commissioners
(or in the absence or inability of the President to act, by the manual or
facsimile signature of the Vice President) and attested to by the manual
or facsimile signature of the City Administrator, and delivered to the
owner at closing upon receipt of the uncancelled Warrants plus any
accrued interest. The Bonds shall not be valid or become obligatory for
any purpose or be entitled to any security or benefit under this Resolution
until the Certificate of Authentication thereon shall have been executed
by the Bond Registrar by manual signature of one of its authorized
representatives.

10. Interest - The Bonds shall bear interest at the annual rates set forth in the
Schedule of Maturities and Interest Rates attached hereto as
Attachment 1. Interest shall be payable on May 1 and November 1 in
each year, commencing May 1,2015, to the person in whose name each
Bond is registered on the close of the 15th day (whether or not a
business day) of the immediately preceding month. Interest shall be
computed on a 30-day month and 360-day year basis. Interest on the

6



Bonds shall cease at maturity or on a date prior thereto on which they
have been duly called for redemption or are required to be redeemed
unless the holder thereof shall present the same for payment and
payment is refused.

11 . Source of Payment/Security - The Bonds are payable from the payments
of principal and interest received on the Warrants held by the Refunding
Fund as secured assets. The Warrants held by the Refunding Fund as
security are payable from the Funds which derive their revenues from the
levy and collection of special assessments against benefited property and
from general taxation as provided in the Financing Resolution.

12. Registration - The Bonds shall be registered as to both principal and
interest and the Bond Registrar shall establish and maintain a register for
the purposes of recording the names and addresses of the registered
owners or assigns, the dates of such registration and the due dates and
amounts for payment of principal and interest on the Bonds; and the City
and the Bond Registrar may deem and treat the person in whose name
any Bond is registered as the absolute owner thereof, whether the Bond
is overdue or not, for the purpose of receiving payment and for all other
purposes, and neither the City nor the Bond Registrar shall be affected by
any notice to the contrary.

13. Assignment - The Bonds are transferable upon the books of the City at
the principal office of the Bond Registrar, by the registered owner thereof
in person or by his attorney duly authorized in writing upon surrender
thereof together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the
Bond Registrar, duly executed by the registered owner or his attorney;
and may also be surrendered in exchange for Bonds of other authorized
denominations. Upon such transfer or exchange the City will cause a
new Bond or Bonds to be issued in the name of the transferee or
registered owner, of the same aggregate principal amount, bearing
interest at the same rate and maturing on the same date, subject to
reimbursement for any tax, fee or governmental charge required to be
paid with respect to such transfer or exchange. No transfer of Bonds
shall be required to be made during the fifteen days next preceding an
interest payment date, nor during the forty-five days next preceding the
date fixed for redemption of Bonds.

14. Discharge - When all of the Bonds, and the interest thereon have been
defeased and discharged as provided in this Paragraph 14, all pledges,
covenants and other rights granted hereinabove by this Resolution shall
cease. The City may defease and discharge all Bonds and interest due

7



on any date by depositing with the Paying Agent on or before that date
a sum sufficient for the payment thereof in full; or if any Bond or interest
thereon should not be paid when due, the same may nevertheless be
defeased and discharged by depositing with the Paying Agent a sum
sufficient for the payment thereof in full with interest accrued from the
due date to the date of such deposit. The City may also defease and
discharge all prepayable Bonds called for redemption on any date when
they are prepayable according to their terms, by depositing with the
Paying Agent on or before that date a sum sufficient for the payment
thereof in full, provided that notice of the redemption thereof has been
duly given as provided herein. The City may also defease and discharge
all Bonds at any time by irrevocably depositing in escrow with an escrow
agent, for the purpose of paying all principal and interest due on such
Bonds prior to a date upon which all of the same will be prepayable
according to their terms, and paying all remaining Bonds on that date, a
sum of cash and securities of the types described in NDCC Section
40-27-13 in such aggregate amount, bearing interest at such rates and
maturing or callable at the holder's option on such dates as shall be
required to provide funds sufficient for this purpose; provided that notice
of the redemption of all prepayable Bonds on or before such date has
been duly given as required herein.

The City covenants that (i) it will restrict the use of the proceeds of the Bonds
in such manner and to such extent as may be necessary, in view of the City's
reasonable expectations at the time of issuance of the Bonds, so that the Bonds will
not constitute "arbitrage bonds" under Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986 and regulations prescribed under such Section, and (il) it will take all actions that
may be required of it (including, without implied limitation, the timely filing of a federal
information return with respect to the Bonds and the payment of required rebate, if
any) so that the interest on the Bonds will be and remain excluded from gross income
for federal income tax purposes, and will not take any actions which would adversely
affect such exclusion.

The City hereby covenants and agrees, for the benefit of the holders of the
Bonds, to enter into a written undertaking (the "Undertaking") required by SEC Rule
15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Rule") to provide continuing disclosure of
certain financial information and operating data and timely notices of the occurrence
of certain events in accordance with the Rule. This Undertaking shall be enforceable
by the holders of the Bonds, or by the Purchaser on behalf of such holders (provided
that the rights of the holders and the Purchaser to enforce the Undertaking shall be
limited to a right to obtain specific enforcement of the obligations hereunder and any
failure by the City to comply with the provision of this Undertaking shall not be an

8



event of default with respect to the Bonds). The City Administrator and President of
the Board of City Commissioners shall provide a Continuing Disclosure Certificate for
inclusion in the transcript of proceedings, setting forth the details and terms of the
City's Undertaking.

The Final Official Statement relating to the Bonds, dated December 5, 2014, is
hereby approved, and the City Administrator is authorized to execute and deliver such
Final Official Statement and to certify to its correctness and completeness as provided
therein.

The officers of the City and Morton County are authorized and directed to
prepare and furnish to the attorneys passing on the legality of the Bonds, certified
copies of all proceedings, ordinances, resolutions and records and such certificates and
affidavits and other instruments as may be required to evidence the legality and
marketability of the Bonds and the tax-exempt status of interest payable thereon, and
all certified copies, certificates, affidavits and other instruments so furnished shall
constitute representations of the City as to the correctness of all facts stated or recited
therein.

(REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)

9



Attest:

City Administrator

(SEAL)

10

CITY OF MANDAN

President, Board of City Commissioners



The governing body of the political subdivision acted on the foregoing resolution

on December 16, 2014, as follows:

Adoption moved by Seconded by _

Roll Call Vote (List Last Names)

nAyel! _

"Nav" --------------------------------

Absent _

and after vote the presiding officer declared the resolution adopted.

11



ORDINANCE NO.  1188 

 

An Ordinance to Amend Title 21 of the Mandan Code of 

Ordinances Related to Landscaping 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS THAT: 

 

Title 21 of the Mandan Code of ordinances is hereby amended and re-enacted to read as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  The Mandan Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to add 

Section 21-03-11. 

 
Plain font text remains Strike through text deleted Underlined text added 

 

Section 21-03-11 Landscaping.  In addition to the requirements contained elsewhere in this title 

related to specific uses or districts, the following requirements shall apply to all property within 

the city.  If these requirements conflict with the requirements for specific uses or districts, the 

requirements for specific uses or districts shall apply. 

1. Time limit.  Each lot or parcel of land shall be landscaped within one year of 

issuance of a certificate of occupancy or within 2 years of issuance of a building permit if a 

certificate of occupancy has not been issued. 

2. Landscaping includes but is not limited to: 

a. Grass that is maintained in a healthy condition; 

b. Trees, shrubs, flowers, ground cover and other cultivated vegetation that 

are maintained in a healthy condition; 

c. Walking paths or maintained trails; 

d. Decorative walls or retaining walls; and 

e. Rocks, ornamental structures or seating. 

3. Landscaping does not include: 

a. Unmaintained areas containing weeds or grasses; 

b. Paved parking and driveway areas;  

c. Gravel or dirt surfaces; and 

d. Areas used for the display of merchandise. 

4. Zoning district criteria.   

a. For lots with residential structures containing 1 to 4 dwelling units, the 

requirement applies to every area of the lot not covered by structures or 

paving. 

b. For lots containing multi-family (greater than 4 dwelling units), 

commercial and industrial structures, a landscaping plan shall be 

submitted to and approved by the MARC prior to issuance of a grading or 

building permit. 

c. For lots within multi-family and commercial districts containing multi-

family structures with more than 4 dwelling units or commercial 

structures, the requirement applies to the front yard setback and the rear 

yard or side yard setback bordering a residential zoned property.  The 

requirement is the lesser of: 

(1) At least 50% of the yard setback areas must be landscaped; or 

Resolutions & Ordinances No. 3  



(2) At least 10% of the developable lot area must be landscaped.  

When determining developable area, areas with steep slopes or low 

areas subject to constant or frequent inundation may be excluded 

from the calculation. 

d. For lots in industrial districts the requirement applies to the front yard 

setback and the rear yard or side yard setback bordering a residential 

zoned property.  The requirement is the lesser of: 

(1) At least 25% of the yard setback areas must be landscaped; or 

(2) At least 5% of the developable lot area must be landscaped.  When 

determining developable area, areas with steep slopes or low areas 

subject to constant or frequent inundation may be excluded from 

the calculation. 

e. Large commercial and industrial lots.  For commercial and industrial lots 

where the landscaping area requirement exceeds 5,000 square feet, trees or 

shrubs must be included in the landscaped area per the requirements of 

Chapter 14-01 administered by the Mandan Architectural Review 

Commission. 

5. Enforcement.   

a. Any authorized city employee or agent of the city may issue a notice of 

violation to a property owner.  The notice of violation shall state the 

requirements to bring the property into compliance and shall set a time 

limit for accomplishing compliance. 

b. Once the property owner has brought the property into compliance, the 

property owner shall contact the city and arrange for an inspection to 

document compliance. 

c. When the city is satisfied that the lot has been brought into compliance, 

the city will issue a written letter acknowledging compliance and 

rescinding the notice of violation. 

d. Should the property owner fail to bring the property into compliance 

within the specified timeframe, the city may grant a time extension for 

good cause or cite the property owner into municipal court. 

e. Once the city has cited the property owner into municipal court, each day 

that the property remains in non-compliance is considered a separate 

violation. 

 

SECTION 2.  RE-ENACTMENT.  The Mandan Code of Ordinances is hereby re-enacted as 

amended.  
 
  

 President, Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

  

City Administrator  

  

First Consideration: December 2, 2014 

Second Consideration and Final Passage: December 16, 2014 

Recording Date:  

 



 

 

 ORDINANCE NO. 1195 

 

 An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact  

 Chapter 4-09 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances  

 Relating to City Employee Pension Plan 

 

Be it Ordained by the Board of City Commissioners as follows: 

 

Section 4-09-01 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is hereby amended and re-

enacted to read as follows: 

 

Section 4-09-01  Participation and employee contribution. 

1. Participation.  On October 9, 1977, by resolution of the board of city 

commissioners, the city established a pension plan for the employees of the city.  This 

plan was amended effective January 1, 1989 in order to comply with TRA-86 IRS 

requirements.    All full-time employees with six months’ service to the city as of the date 

of the adoption of the city employee pension plan became participants in the plan.  Any 

All employees who meets the plan’s eligibility requirements may shall participate in the 

city employee pension plan, unless at the time of employment the employee elects in 

writing not to participate.  Any employee who elects to join the plan will be unable to 

terminate or withdraw from the plan unless he resigns, retires or dies.   

2. Eligible Employee.  All full-time and regular part-time employees of the 

City of Mandan, Morton Mandan Public Library, Mandan Park District and Mandan 

Airport Authority, who are eighteen years of age or older and who have completed the 

probationary period are eligible to participate in the plan at their discretion.   

4. Sworn Police Officers and Career Firefighters eligible contribution levels.    

a.   Sworn Police Officers and Career Firefighters are eligible for an 8% 

contribution to the Plan when a participant’s salary reduction 

contribution to the 457 Plan is 2% or 3%. 

b. Sworn Police Officers and Career Firefighters are eligible for a 10% 

contribution to the Plan when a participant’s salary reduction 

contribution to the 457 Plan is 4% or greater.  

c. Sworn Police Officers and Career Firefighters are eligible for a 0% 

contribution to the Plan when a participant’s salary reduction 

contribution to the 457 Plan is less than 2%. 

 

 Section 4-09-05 Contributions of city. 

 The city shall each year pay to the trustee an amount for allocation, which amount 

shall be eight percent of the compensation of the employees, except for employees 

defined in Section 4-09-01(4).  

 

Resolutions & Ordinances No. 4  



Section 4-09-08 Computation of benefit distributions.  

4. Normal Participant Retirement Age:   

a. A Participant attains Normal Retirement Age under the Plan when 

the Participant attains age 65.  

b. Plan designates attainment of age 55 for Sworn Police Officers and 

Career Firefighters. 

 

 

By:___________________________________ 

President, Board of City Commissioners  

Attest: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

City Administrator 

 

 

First Consideration:   December 2, 2014  

Second Consideration  

    and Final Passage:  December 16, 2014  

 



Resolutions #5

Board of City Commissioners

Agenda Documentation

"WHERE THE WEST BEGINS"

MEETING DATE:
PREPARATION DATE:
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT:
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR:
PRESENTER:
SUBJECT:

December 16, 2014
December 10,2014
Finance
Greg Welch, Finance Director
Greg Welch, Finance Director
Resolution establishing NSF charge for returned
payments.

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:
Consider Resolution establishing NSF charge for returned payments.

BACKGROUNDIALTERNATIVES:
The City currently charges customers a NSF charge of $10 for returned checks and ACH
payments, declined credit cards, and closed checking and savings accounts. This charge
has been in place for many years. Due to increasing fees charged by financial institutions
and the City's administrative cost to contact customers for these NSF items, the City
needs to increase the charge to recover these expenses.

ATTACHMENT:
Resolution establishing NSF charge for returned payments resulting from public utilities
and services supplied, provided or furnished by the City of Mandan.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Increase the NSF charge from $10 to $20 per returned payment.

STAFF IMPACT:
None

LEGAL REVIEW:
Submitted to Malcolm Brown, City Attorney.

RECOMMENDATION:
To approve the Resolution establishing NSF charge for returned payments resulting from
public utilities and services supplied, provided or furnished by the City of Mandan.



Board of City Commissioners
Agenda Documentation
Meeting Date: December 16,2014
Subject: Salary Market Adjustments
Page 2 of2

SUGGESTED MOTION:
Move to approve the Resolution establishing NSF charge for returned payments resulting
from public utilities and services supplied, provided or furnished by the City of Mandan.



RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING NSF CHARGE FOR RETURNED PAYMENTS
RESULTING FROM PUBLIC UTILITIES AND SERVICES SUPPLIED, PROVIDED OR

FURNISHED BY THE CITY OF MANDAN

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan,
North Dakota, that the following NSF charge for returned payments resulting from public
utilities and services supplied, provided or furnished by the City is hereby established:

The City shall add NSF charge of $10.00 $20.00 per returned payment.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the NSF charge for returned payments
resulting from public utilities and services supplied, provided or furnished by the City be
effective as of January 1, 2015.

Dated this 16th day of December 2014.

President, Board of City Commissioners

Attest:

City Administrator



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To update Mandan’s municipal code for local breweries and 

wineries to better foster this local industry by being in sync with provisions of N.D. 

Century Code.  

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The craft spirit industry in the United States is 

growing rapidly with economic development opportunity for tourism, manufacturing, 

revitalization and more. North Dakota laws are becoming friendlier to the craft beer 

industry. This ordinance would update Mandan’s municipal code to reflect allowances for 

maximum quantities for sale and distribution as indicated in North Dakota Century Code. 

Mandan is home to Buffalo Commons Brewery and Bird Dog Brewery hopes to be 

operational in early 2015. Potential exists to expand this industry in Mandan. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   Proposed ordinance attached. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   None 

 

STAFF IMPACT:   None 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   Drafted by Attorney Brown. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   I recommend approval of Ordinance 1196 as presented. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve Ordinance 1196 as presented. 

 

 

MEETING DATE: December 16, 2014 

PREPARATION DATE: December 11, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development & Communications 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 

PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 

SUBJECT: Ordinance 1196 Regarding Wineries/Breweries 

 

  

Resolutions & Ordinances No. 6 



 

 ORDINANCE NO. 1196 

 

 An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact  

 Chapter 12-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances  

 Relating to Class WB License 

 

Be it Ordained by the Board of City Commissioners as follows: 

 

Section 12-02-04.1 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is hereby amended and 

re-enacted to read as follows: 

 

1. A Class WB license may be issued only to a domestic winery or brewery 

owner or operator who obtains a license from the Office of the Attorney General allowing 

the production of wine or beer. 

2. A Class WB license will authorize the licensee to sell, on the winery or 

brewery premises, wine or beer produced by that winery or brewery on the premises at 

on-sale or off-sale, in retail lots, and not for resale, in total quantities not in excess of 

10,000 barrels in a calendar year that permitted by N.D.C.C. § 5-01-21 and amendments 

thereto.  In the absence of another appropriate license, sales or delivery of on-sale or 

off-sale wine, or any other alcoholic beverage produced off the premises shall not be 

permitted.  Licenses under this section entitle the licensee to sell beer manufactured on the 

premises for off-premises consumption, in brewery-sealed containers of not less than 

one-half gallon [1.89 liters] and not more than three gallons [11.36 liters] in quantities 

permitted by N.D.C.C. § 5-01-21 and amendments thereto   

3. A Class WB license will authorize the licensee to utilize special event 

permits issued by the Office of the Attorney General. 

4. A Class WB license holder may: 

(a) Sell and deliver beer produced by the brewery to licensed beer 

wholesalers. 

(b) Dispense free samples of beer offered for sale.  Complimentary 

samples of beer may not be in an amount exceeding that permitted by 

N.D.C.C. § 5-01-21 and amendments thereto, per patron.  

(c) Sell and deliver beer produced by the brewery to licensed retailers 

within the state, but only if: 

(1) The brewer uses the brewer’s own equipment, trucks, and 

employees to deliver the beer;  

(2) Individual deliveries, other than draft beer, are limited to the 

case equivalent of that permitted by N.D.C.C. § 5-01-21 and 

amendments thereto, to each licensed retailer; 

(3) The total amount of beer sold or delivered directly to all 

retailers does not exceed that permitted by N.D.C.C. § 5-01-21 

and amendments thereto; and  



 

(4) A common carrier is not used to ship or deliver the brewery’s 

product to the public or to licensed retailers.   All other sales 

and deliveries of beer to licensed retailers in this state may be 

made only through a wholesaler licensed in this state.  

4. 5. The Class WB license shall be governed by all the provisions of this chapter 

generally applicable to all license qualifications. 

5. 6. The fee for a Class WB license shall be as determined by resolution of the 

Board of City Commissioners. 

 

 

 

 

By:___________________________________ 

President, Board of City Commissioners  

Attest: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

City Administrator 

 

 

First Consideration:  _________________ 

Second Consideration  

    and Final Passage: ________________ 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider adopting a resolution adopting the Morton 

County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Hazard mitigation is being done in Morton County 

because often, the price of mitigating a hazard beforehand is more cost effective than 

paying for the recovery and response after one occurs and losing priceless lives. The 

Morton County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan contains strategies to mitigate hazard 

beforehand. 

 

Hazard mitigation takes place because of mitigation funding from Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (FEMA) through Homeland Security and Emergency Management 

and the Department of Public Safety. FEMA requires that this planning process occur in 

all counties in North Dakota. Failure to comply means that said county or other local 

government unit will not be eligible for mitigation funding from FEMA and has the 

possibility of reduced recovery funding during the next declared disaster. 

 

The goals of the plan are to get people, property, jobs and natural resources out of harm’s 

way. The plan was completed using multiple steps as follows: 

 

Step One: County Profile 

Step Two: Hazards Profile 

Step Three: Risk Assessment 

Step Four: Goals, Objectives, and Mitigation Strategies 

Step Five: Plan Administration 

 

The finished plan is meant to be a guide for dealing with present and future hazards. The 

written plan does not replace existing operational mitigation plans currently in use, but 

MEETING DATE: December 16, 2014 

PREPARATION DATE: December 11, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

PRESENTER: Tom Doering, Morton County Emergency 

Manager 

SUBJECT: Morton County Hazard Mitigation Plan Resolution 

 

  

Resolutions & Ordinances No. 7 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: December 16, 2014 

Subject: Morton County Hazard Mitigation Plan Resolution 

Page 2 of 2 

 

rather supplements them. This will be updated when new information and hazards 

become available. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   Resolution, Full Plan is available upon request (317 pages) 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  n/a 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Several representatives from the City of Mandan served on the 

Steering Committee. 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend approving the resolution adopting the Morton 

County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan as approved by FEMA. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the resolution adopting the Morton County 

Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan as approved by the Federal Emergency Management 

Agency (FEMA) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


	Agenda December 16, 2014
	Minutes December 2, 2014 - Regular Mtg.
	Bids - Grounds Maintenance Bldg. at Cemetery
	2015 Salary Market Adjustments
	ESA with Stantec of 2015 Downtown Street Impr. District Project
	2014 Budget Amendment - Breathing air bottles purchase
	NDDOT Annual Maintenance Certification
	Memorial Highway Signals Preliminary Engineering (PE) Reimbursement Agreement
	Sponsor Parks & Recreation TAP Application
	Miss Rodeo ND Organization games of chance at Seven Seas/Baymont Inn
	SSBCI Audit
	SSBCI OIG Audit Final Report August 2014
	Update on current Street Improvement Projects
	Update on sidewalk/driveway apron standard specifications, details and ordinance sections
	Appointment to Mandan Airport Authority
	Res. No. 1 & 2 Board Documentation
	Res. No. 1 - Financing Resolution (re warrants)
	Res. No. 2 - Resolution authorizing issuance of refunding Impr. Bonds of 2014, Series B
	Ord. No. 1188 Landscaping
	Ord. No. 1195 Relating to City Employee Pension Plan
	Resolution establishing NSF charge for returned payments
	Ord. No. 1196 Regarding wineries/breweries - overview
	Ord. No. 1196 Amend and Re-enact Class WB License
	Morton County Hazard Mitigation Plan Resolution



